
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

  
 

Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss, Council Member Arizmendi, 

Council Member Delmar, and Council Member Harabedian 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                       Regarding Closed Session Items 

 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957.6 

City Negotiators: City Manager Elaine Aguilar and Assistant City Manager Elisa Cox 

Employee Organization: Police Association 
 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016 

 

Closed Session 6:00 pm  

Open Session 6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 John Capoccia, Mayor  

Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

John Harabedian, Council Member 

 

Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk  

Richard Mays, City Treasurer 



OPEN  SESSION 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss,  

Council Members Arizmendi, Delmar, and Harabedian 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council 

meeting on March 8, 2016. 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 
 

PRESENTATION   Recognition of Assembly District 41 Woman of 

Distinction, Kristine Lowe 
 

PRESENTATION 

 

 Recognition of City employee Kim Steffens  

15 Years serving the City of Sierra Madre 

PRESENTATION  Introduction of Sandra Jimenez, new Sierra Madre 

Police Dispatcher 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 16-17 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-17 for approval of payment of City 

Warrants in aggregate amount of $353,177.96; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $1,712.31, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $304,365.05 

for fiscal year ending June 2016. 
 

 b) FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-16, approving the statement of 

investment policy for fiscal year 2015-2016 
 

 c) REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

NEW TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

SYSTEM 

 Recommendation that the City Council direct staff to 

proceed with the RFP to solicit proposals for a new 

telecommunications system. 
 

 ITEMS FOR DISUSSION 

 

  

2. UPDATE ON THE MS4 PERMIT 

(STORMWATER) 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 
 

3. MARCH WATER CONSERVATION 

UPDATE AND CONSIDERATION OF 

ADDITIONAL CITY WATER 

CONSERVATION ACTIONS 

 Recommendation that the City Council direct staff to 

contact top water users; to renew water conservation 

public information; to return with a report and 

ordinance to implement increased penalties for 

exceeding water conservation targets; and to direct that 

the next water rate study by based upon water budgets. 
 

 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080530
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080530
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080528
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080528
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080528
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080528
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080526
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080526
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080524
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080524
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080524
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080522
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080522
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080519
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080519
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080519
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3080519


ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at this same place on Tuesday, April 26, 2016 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/






 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 

 
 

Date Issued:  March 23, 2016 
Date Due: April 25, 2016 - 4:30 p.m. P.S.T. 

 

 

City Of Sierra Madre  

Request for Proposal  
Telecommunications 

System and Carrier 

Services 

ATTACHMENT

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=&url=http://www.sierramadrenews.net/?p%3D303&psig=AFQjCNEKpcdEU2X3Ao9CVzZMGEO1E3DWVw&ust=1457713938110682


Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

City of Sierra Madre 232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 • 
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com  

 

 

March 10, 2016 

 

Re:  REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS for a Telecommunications System and Carrier 

Services 

 

 

 

Dear Vendors: 

 
The City of Sierra Madre is currently accepting proposals for a new Telecommunications 

System. Specifications and RFP documents are available at the City Hall 232 W. Sierra 

Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 or at http://www.cityofsierramadre.com. 

Proposal instructions are contained in Sections 3-4 of the Request for Proposals (RFP) 

document.  Please provide the requested information in the prescribed written format.  

Failure to comply with the prescribed format may result in disqualification.  

 There is an optional pre-proposal vendor conference scheduled for 11:00 a.m. PST, 

Monday, March 28, 2016 at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, 

CA 91024.  Vendors are limited to three (3) attendees. 

 Questions: All questions must be received by 5:00 p.m. PST, March 30, 2016.  

Questions received after this deadline will not be accepted. 

Please email your questions to:  Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager, 

ecox@cityofsierramadre.com 

 Proposals Due: One (1) original, Three (3) printed copies, and one (1) complete 

electronic copy on CD/Memory Stick of your Proposal must be received no later than 

4:30 p.m. PST, April 25, 2016.  

Thank you for your participation.  We look forward to reviewing your Proposal. 

 

Sincerely, 

City of Sierra Madre 

 

ATTACHMENT

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Telecommunications System – Request for Proposal 
City of Sierra Madre, CA 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

The City of Sierra Madre, CA  Page 3 of 49 

SECTION PAGE 

1  OBJECTIVES AND PROCESS SCHEDULE4 

Purpose ............................................................................................. 4 

Objective ........................................................................................... 4 

General Process and Schedule ............................................................. 5 

Project Background ............................................................................ 6 

2  EVALUATION CRITERIA ..................... 7 

Evaluation Criteria .............................................................................. 7 

3  PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS ................ 8 

General Proposal Instructions & Due Dates .......................................... 8 

Proposal Format ................................................................................. 8 

4  TELECOM SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS 10 

Telecommunications System RFP Specifications and Proposal 
Requirements ................................................................................... 10 

General Instructions ......................................................................... 10 

5  DISCLOSURES & CONTRACTUAL 

REQUIREMENTS............................... 46 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP 

The City of Sierra Madre 

The City of Sierra Madre, CA  Page 4 of 49 

1  OBJECTIVES AND PROCESS SCHEDULE 

Purpose 

This information was developed in a format to facilitate the preparation of responses to this 

Request for Proposals (RFP) and the subsequent evaluation of those responses. 

Because there are several vendors who provide the type of system and services that the 

City desires, it is their desire to meet their future telecommunications needs through this 

competitive selection process.  The minimum requirements noted in this RFP are designed 

to assist in the selection of the vendor that best meets the City's needs. 

Objective  

The objective of the City of Sierra Madre is to acquire a new telecommunications system 

and carrier services to serve the citizens and administrative operations of the City.  The City 

is seeking a state-of-the-art telecommunications system to serve their facilities.   

The City would like proposals for premise based, hybrid or fully hosted VoIP telephone 

systems.  Vendors are encouraged to consider the following issues when deciding on their 

proposed solution: 

 The existing telecommunications system currently installed is obsolete.  Timing is 

important.   

 Some of the existing data network infrastructure will not support VoIP to the desktop 

environment.  As a result, new enterprise class switches will be required, including 

PoE functionality.  The City will consider proposals that include the necessary 

switches, but can also acquire and implement internally, if more advantageous.  In 

either case, the prevailing vendor will provide all network design required including 

but not limited to VoIP and QoS for both the data and phone/VoIP VLAN’s. 

 The City’s budget for the project is limited. 

 

This document contains the system specifications and the requested format for vendor 

proposals.  If additional features or equipment are believed to be appropriate for the City’s 

operations, please quote them as options and include supporting justification and cost 

detail. 

 
The City reserves the right to the following: 

 Accept the Proposal that is, in its judgment, the best and most favorable to the 

interests of the City,  

 To reject the low price Proposal,  

 To accept any item of any Proposal,  

 To reject any and all Proposals,  

 To waive irregularities and informalities in any Proposal submitted or in the Request 

for Proposals process.  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 5 of 49 

General Process and Schedule 

During the selection process, the City will review the submitted Proposals and systems. 

Using subsequent interviews, demonstrations, reference checks, and site visits, the City will 

then pick a final preferred vendor.  The City will negotiate final pricing and terms and 

conditions with the preferred vendor.  The following is the current estimated schedule, as 

defined by the City and can be changed at its discretion: 

 

Estimated Selection Process Step Date(s) 

Release and Issuance of the Request for Proposals (RFP) March 23, 2016 

Pre-Proposal Vendor Conference March 28, 2016 

Final Date for Vendors to Submit Questions March 30, 2016 

Date for Publishing Answers to Vendors’ Questions April 5, 2016 

Proposals Due  April 25, 2016 

Finalist Vendor Demonstration Meetings May 12, 2016 

Final Vendor Selection  May 17, 2016 

Estimated Approval May 24, 2016 

Implementation Start    May 31, 2016 

Table 1 – Estimated Selection Schedule 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 6 of 49 

Project Background 

 
The City currently has three major sites with telecom services.  The three main buildings on 

the Civic Center campus (City Hall, Police Department and Senior Center) are connected to 

the City Hall building using City owned CAT5e or CAT6 data cable and digital telephone 

cabling installed in conduits between buildings.  The City currently uses this copper cable to 

provide data network connectivity between these buildings. The other two locations (Library 

and Public Works Yard) are currently connected to City Hall via point-to-point frame or T1 

connections for voice and VPN for data.  The City is open to a Metropolitan Area Network, 

MPLS, or any other WAN communications network that would provide reliable data and 

telecommunications connectivity.  The City highly prefers all of the sites to be survivable in 

the event of a loss of data/WAN connectivity. 

Today, the City locations utilize an older Toshiba telephone system.     

It is the City’s intent to obtain a new telecommunications system that will continue to allow 

direct connectivity and enhanced communications.  The new system will be installed in the 

existing City Hall and locations in each site.  This RFP is requesting the Telephone system, 

telecommunication lines and services, onsite repair/maintenance and optional data network 

equipment. 

The City would like a new telecommunications system that uses VoIP technology integrating 

both Voice and Data on the same network.     

It would be preferred for any proposal for the new telecommunications system to use 

survivable remote technology for the telecommunications system.  Our intent with this 

statement is for the vendors to propose the needed hardware to enable each location to fail 

over to local POTS line(s) in the event of the loss of the WAN. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP 

The City of Sierra Madre 

The City of Sierra Madre, CA  Page 7 of 49 

2  EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Evaluation Criteria 

All proposals will be evaluated using the following general evaluation Criteria: 

 

Criteria 

Technical Functionality 

System Cost  

References & Experience 

Service and Support  

Additional Criteria to be determined 

Table 2 – Evaluation Criteria 

 
The evaluation process will consist of review and evaluation of proposals received by a team 

consisting of City personnel and consultants.     

Project Cost will be evaluated based on initial purchase and installation price and total cost 

of ownership over five years.  
 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP 

The City of Sierra Madre 

The City of Sierra Madre, CA  Page 8 of 49 

3  PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS 

This section outlines the information that must be included in the Proposal.  Vendors should 

review this list to ensure that their Proposals include all requested information prior to 

submission.   

General Proposal Instructions & Due Dates 

 Questions: All questions should be directed to Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager, using 

e-mail to ecox@cityofsierramadre.com no later than 5:00 p.m. PST, March 30, 2016. 

Questions received after this deadline will not be accepted. 

 

 Answers to submitted questions will be posted on the City’s website and a link 

published via email on April 5, 2016 will be provided to all vendors that have 

confirmed their intent to propose.  

 Printed Proposals Due: One (1) original, three (3) printed copies, and one (1) 

electronic version on a CD/Memory Stick in Word or PDF format must be received 

no later than 4:30pm p.m. PST, April 25, 2016 addressed to: 

 

Telecommunications Proposal 

c/o Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager 

City of Sierra Madre 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

Sierra Madre, CA  91024 

 

Requests for extension of the submission date will not be granted unless deemed in the best 

interests of the City.  Vendors submitting Proposals should allow for normal mail or delivery 

time to ensure timely receipt of their Proposal. 

Proposal Format 

Proposals should follow the Request for Proposals format provided in Section 4. 

Please include a Table of Contents at the beginning of the Proposal clearly outlining the 

contents of each section. 

Please provide the following sections, as a minimum: 

 Understanding of Project Objectives 

 Response to Telecom System Specifications 

 Disclosures and Contractual Requirements  

 Appendices 

 All Proposals must be signed by a duly authorized official representing the vendor 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 9 of 49 

 Only written communication from the City may be considered binding.  The City reserves 

the right to terminate the selection process at any time and to reject any or all 

Proposals.  

  

 The contract will be awarded to the vendor or combination of vendors whose overall 

Proposals best meets the requirements of the City. 

 

 The City shall not be liable for any pre-contract costs incurred by interested vendors 

participating in the selection process. 

 

 The contents of each vendor's Proposal to the City, including technical specifications for 

hardware and software and software maintenance fees, shall remain valid for a 

minimum of 90 calendar days from the Proposal due date. 

 

 Vendors should provide copies of all sample contracts for application software and 

software support.  Please note that all contracts are subject to negotiation. 

 

 The City of Sierra Madre will require the vendor selected to agree to include the contents 

of this Request for Proposals and all representations, warranties, and commitments in 

the Proposal and related correspondences as contractual obligations when developing 

final written contracts for services, equipment, and software. 

   

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP 

The City of Sierra Madre 

The City of Sierra Madre, CA  Page 10 of 49 

4  TELECOM SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS  

Telecommunications System RFP Specifications and Proposal 

Requirements 

This section of the RFP contains the specifications and details regarding the City’s 

Telecommunications system requirements.  

General Instructions 

Written proposals are required by the City for a telecommunications system as described in 

the sections below.   

 

1. The proposal, estimated to be awarded in May 2016, will be confirmed by a purchase 

order issued to the successful vendor.  

 

2. The proposal will be awarded based on the overall proposal and in the best interests 

of the City.  Prices should be shown for each line item.  The City reserves the right to 

accept the Proposal that is, in its judgment, the best and most favorable to the 

interests of the City, to reject the low price Proposal, to accept any item of any 

Proposal, to reject any and all Proposals, and to waive irregularities and informalities 

in any Proposal submitted or in the Request for Proposals process. 

  

3. Equipment must be new and fully eligible for manufacturer’s warranty.  F.O.B. inside 

delivery, to location indicated on each order. 

 

4. Freight should be included in the unit price.  Inside delivery to the City.  Pallets 

must be broken down and boxes disposed of by the selected vendor. 

 

5. The City must comply with the California Public Records Request Act.  The City 

cannot represent or guarantee that any information submitted in response to the RFP 

will be confidential.  If the City receives a request for any document submitted in 

response to the RFP, the City’s sole responsibility will be to notify respondent of a 

request for such document to allow the respondent to seek protection from 

disclosure in a court of competent jurisdiction.   

 

6. The proposal shall constitute a binding offer to sell the above-noted product(s) to the 

City and may not be withdrawn once the City has awarded the contract to the 

successful vendor. 

  

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 11 of 49 

1. Instructions to Proposer 

 

1.1. General – The City of Sierra Madre (the City) is seeking a state-of-the-art, 

highly reliable telecommunications system that will provide enhanced features 

and provide the City with superior service at a reasonable cost. 

It would be preferred that any proposal for a new telecommunications system 

use survivable remote technology for all locations from the primary City 

telecommunications system allowing those locations to default to locally installed 

POTS lines in the event of a WAN failure.   

1.2. System Proposals - Under this procurement, the City will accept proposals for 

replacement equipment for the locations mentioned in this document.  In 

addition, telecommunications lines and carrier services are desired. 

1.3. Please list each location separately in your proposal showing proposed 

equipment and costs.   

1.4. Vendors must propose Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) systems.  The 

proposed solution is to provide the following high level features and applications: 

1.4.1. Capable of supporting SIP Trunking 

1.4.2. Capable of supporting analog PSTN services for fax/conference/etc. 

1.4.3. Optionally capable of supporting ISDN PRI services for inbound and outbound 

Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN) services. 

1.4.4. Capable of providing a single centralized voice mail system accessible to serve 

all users. 

1.4.5. The system serving all locations must function as if they were one.  

1.4.6. Capable of providing access to local inbound, outbound and long distance 

inbound and outbound services provided by carriers both in use by the City 

and proposed. 

1.4.7. The City’s IT Operations are going to be moving to virtualized servers.  The 

City is open to both virtualized and non-virtualized solutions, if the system is 

server based or has server based components. 

1.4.7.1. Please propose your system including all specifications required for 

server hardware and software, if applicable. 

1.4.7.2. Please provide detailed information regarding the proposed system 

assuming current or future ability to operate in a virtual environment. 

1.4.8. The City will be responsible for providing rack space, uninterruptible power 

systems and environmental controls for the proposed system. 

1.4.9. Capable of providing unified messaging services. 

1.4.10. Capable of providing auto-attendant and dial-directory functionality for 

all locations. 

1.4.11. Capable of providing the hardware and software tools necessary to 

allow effective management of all communications systems from one 

location.   

The City is also seeking maintenance and ongoing enhancement and 

other support services from the selected provider; however, the City 

wishes to manage the day-to-day adds, moves, and changes 

internally.  The City may wish to manage the system remotely, please 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 12 of 49 

describe how this application would work and how you would address 

security. 

1.5. Hosted Solution Proposals 

1.5.1. If you are proposing a hosted solution your proposal must include: 

1.5.1.1. The phone types listed in the RFP 

1.5.1.2. Trunking and line design as requested in the RFP 

1.5.1.3. Detailed description of the design, connectivity to/from each site 

1.5.1.4. If you are using the City’s data network to distribute your proposed 

hosted design, your proposal must include all components or 

specifications necessary to deploy the design. (i.e. network switches) 

1.5.1.5. The proposal must include all features requested in the RFP for users 

throughout the system. 

1.5.1.6. If the use of any of these features is measured and priced by the 

number of times the City uses the feature, your proposal must include 

the incremental cost of the use. 

1.5.1.7. It would be preferred that the hosted solution include the survivability 

for each site as requested in the RFP.  This means that if the internet 

or WAN connection for an individual site is lost, the equipment 

installed locally is configured to use a local POTS line(s) as its back up.   

1.5.1.8. Routing of specific telephone numbers to cell phones will be considered 

as one option for failover, but survivability via analog backups or other 

technology would be desirable. 

1.5.1.9. Pricing quotes should include any one-time costs and all monthly costs 

for the proposed service for each location. 

 

1.6. Configuration 

1.6.1. This specification section provides further sizing, component, feature and 

function specifications necessary for the proposer to develop system pricing 

that must be detailed in 6.0.  However, all proposers should note the 

following: 

1.6.1.1. The component quantities detailed in Sections 2, 3, 4 and 5 are not 

necessarily the final quantities the City will purchase.  Exact quantities 

may increase or decrease subsequent to the release of this document. 

1.6.1.2. While the pricing information provided in response to 6.0 will be used 

to evaluate the various proposals received, the City will not enter into 

a contract for those quantities upon contract award, however the 

detailed component pricing must be valid for 90 days from date of the 

proposal.  Component price decreases are acceptable, but price 

increases will not be allowed. 

1.6.1.3. After the contract is awarded by the City to the successful vendor, the 

selected vendor must conduct a thorough and complete on-site station 

review.  This station review process will identify the following: 

1.6.1.3.1. The type and quantity of all telephone stations, by City location, to 

be installed for City users during the implementation process. 

1.6.1.3.2. The telephone station programming, by user, including, but not 

limited to, telephone numbering, programmed features, call flow, 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 13 of 49 

recordings, ACD, ACD Reporting, detailed automated attendant 

operation, and voice mail capability. 

1.6.1.3.3. Detailed voice system security plan that addresses the liabilities of 

the proposed system.  Each system may require different 

protection measures; it is our expectation that the selected vendor 

will provide recommendations regarding protection of this system 

in the City’s environment. 

1.6.1.3.4. The PSTN network interface information by customer location to 

provide for local, long distance, E911, and intra-organization 

calling. 

1.6.1.4. The information developed through the station review process will be 

provided to the City both electronically and in hard copy.  The selected 

vendor will detail the design to the City and gain the City’s acceptance 

before proceeding.  Phased implementation will follow. 

1.6.1.5. The City will not be responsible for any equipment order placed by the 

vendor prior to the completion and acceptance of the station review 

process. 

 

1.7. Intent of Request for Proposal 

The primary intent of this document is to provide the vendor with a reference 

point to design a complete telecommunications system that will satisfy the 

objectives of the City.  The specifications provided herein are intended to 

facilitate communication of the requirements of the City and are to be considered 

as the minimum requirements.  These system details do not relieve the vendor of 

any responsibility for providing a technically and operationally workable system. 

1.8. Format of Response 

1.8.1. The proposal should follow the same outline as this Section of the RFP.  Thus, 

each numbered section starting at the beginning should have an appropriate 

response such as “read and understood and included” or the pertinent 

information requested. 

1.8.2. The proposer should address each point listed in the document 

directly below the numbered point.  In this way, the City will be able 

to discuss the specific information requested and review the specific 

response without a cumbersome matching process.  This includes all 

sections and points in this RFP. 

1.9. Vendor Company Information 

1.9.1. Please provide a description of your company background to include the 

following: 

1.9.1.1. Company financial statements 

1.9.1.2. Age of company 

1.9.1.3. Length of time in the telecom industry 

1.9.1.4. Company ownership 

1.9.1.5. Relationship with the proposed system’s manufacturer 

1.9.1.6. Number of employees 

1.9.1.7. Number of office locations 

1.9.1.8. Address of the nearest location to the City 

1.9.1.9. Address of your local office responding to the RFP 

1.9.1.10. Specific company representative assigned to be our contact, including 

name, address, phone, fax and email 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 14 of 49 

1.9.1.11. Has your company experienced a workforce reduction in the past 5 

years? 

1.9.1.12. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 

1.9.1.13. Litigation History (past five years) 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 15 of 49 

2. Data Network Requirements 

2.1. Overview 

The City of Sierra Madre wishes to implement a VoIP system and data network.  

Following is a drawing of the current data network for the City.   Following is the 

current network arrangement: 

 

Civic Center
222, 232 & 242 W. Sierra Madre Blvd.

Sierra Madre, CA  91024

Library – 440 W. Yard - 621 E.

Network Security Appliance

2400

SonicWALL NSA 2400

Network Security Appliance

2400

SonicWALL NSA 2400

City Hall - 232 Senior Center - 222Police Department - 242

CONSOLE

PWR TEST ALARM
X5

X4

X3

X2

X1

X0

Network Security Appliance

SonicWALL NSA 3500

Module

Packet

Status

1x 6x

13x 18x

Status

Packet

Status
green = enabled, link OK

flashing green  = disabled, link OK

off = link fail

SuperStack 3

7x 12x

19x 24x

Unit

Power/Self Test

Switch 33003C16980

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

3 4

7 8

1 2

5 6

3Com 3C16980A L3 10/100

DGS-3650

X Stack

Power

49

Console
RPS

2 164 6 8 10 12 14 18 3220 22 24 26 28 30 34 4836 38 40 42 44 46 Combo 2

1 2
10/100M

1000M 3 4 Link Act

Combo 4

Combo 3Combo 1

50

10GE Port

D-Link DGS-3650 L3 Gigabit

10/100/1000 Mbps  Gigabit SwitchGS116

1 2 3 4

Power

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Ethernet

On= Lin k

Blin k=Act

Both =1000M

100M     10M

Auto
Uplink

Netgear GS116 Gigabit

Managed Switch

1000M
10/100M
Link Act

Reset

SIO 1

SIO 2

Master

Stack ID

33 4834 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 4717 3218 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 311 162 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 45

Combo

46 47 48

Power

Console

RPS

Fan Err

DGS-3100-48

D-Link DGS-3100-48 Gigabit

Managed Switch

1000M
10/100M
Link Act

Reset

SIO 1

SIO 2

Master

Stack ID

33 4834 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 4717 3218 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 311 162 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 45

Combo

46 47 48

Power

Console

RPS

Fan Err

DGS-3100-48

D-Link DGS-3100-48 Gigabit

Managed Switch

DGS-3100-24

1 6 7 8 9 13 14 16 172 3 4 5 10 11 12 15 18 19 20 22 23 2421 23 2421 22

Combo

Power

Console

RPS

Fan Err

Link Act
10/100M
1000M

Stack ID

Reset

SIO 1

SIO 2

Master

D-Link DGS-3100-24 Gigabit

MODEL GS724T24 Port 10/100/1000 Mbps Smart Switch

Reset PWR

LINK/ACT
SPD
FDX

Auto
Uplink

2

1

4

3

6

5

8

7

10

9

12

11

14

13

16

15

18

17

20

19

22

21

24

23

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23T

2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24T

23F 24F
SFP
LINK

SFP
LINK

Factory
Defaults

LINK/ACT

SPD
FDX

Yellow = 10Mbps

Green = 100Mbps

Netgear GS724T Gigabit

MODEL GS724T24 Port 10/100/1000 Mbps Smart Switch

Reset PWR

LINK/ACT
SPD
FDX

Auto
Uplink

2

1

4

3

6

5

8

7

10

9

12

11

14

13

16

15

18

17

20

19

22

21

24

23

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23T

2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24T

23F 24F
SFP
LINK

SFP
LINK

Factory
Defaults

LINK/ACT

SPD
FDX

Yellow = 10Mbps

Green = 100Mbps

Netgear GS724T Gigabit

46F 48F

45F 47F

GREEN=1000M
YELLOW=100M
OFF=10M

Speed

Reset
PWR

SFP Link /Act SFP Link /Act

Default
Factory

Auto
Uplink

GS 748TMODEL

Link/Act Speed1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45T 47T
Smart Switch

2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46T 48T

Netgear GS748T Gigabit

 

This is the current data network arrangement; the new network arrangement will 

be almost the same as above using new network gear requested in the pricing 

tables in the back of the RFP. 

2.2. Network Description 

The City is open to reviewing proposals for enterprise class network equipment 

manufacturers including Cisco, HP and Extreme. We have listed the needed 

replacement switches in the pricing section of the RFP. 

The successful vendor will be responsible for either configuring or providing 

detailed configuration design and assistance for all existing and replacement data 

networking equipment to industry standards for VoIP and the complete 

integration of all switches and routers into the City’s network. 

The City has included a table for you to use to list the proposed data network 

equipment and their costs, if you will be providing them as part of your solution.  

Completing this table is required for the required bill of materials. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 16 of 49 

At minimum, we would like to have two Layer 3 (L3) switches at our Civic Center, 

one at the Police Department and one at City Hall.  Past that, we would want one 

L3 switch at both the library and yard.  In addition to the L3, we would need L2 

switches.  ALL switches should have PoE, or PoE+ on ALL ports with a power 

budget meeting or exceeding the requirements of the proposed phone equipment 

stations. 

Proposed equipment should meet the following standards and requirements: 

2.3. References 

2.3.1. NEC “National Electric Code, “2005” or revision followed by the authority 

having jurisdiction at the project location 

2.3.2. Local Electrical Codes enforced and followed by the authority having 

jurisdiction at the project location 

2.3.3. NJATC “Configuring and Installing Local Area Networks” Latest Edition 

2.3.4. TIA/EIA-568-B.1 “Commercial Building Telecommunications Cabling Standard 

Part 1: General Requirements”, including all current addenda 

2.3.5. TIA/EIA-568-B.2 “Commercial Building Telecommunications Cabling Standard 

Part 2: Balanced Twisted-Pair Cabling Components”, including all current 

addenda 

2.3.6. TIA/EIA-568-B.3 “Optical Fiber Cabling Components Standard”, including all 

current addenda 

2.3.7. ANSI/TIA/EIA-569-A  “Commercial Building Standards for 

Telecommunications Pathways and Spaces” 

2.3.8. ANSI/TIA/EIA-606  “The Administration Standard for the Telecommunications 

Infrastructure of Commercial Buildings” 

2.3.9. ANSI/TIA/EIA-607 “Commercial Building Grounding and Bonding 

Requirements for Telecommunications” 

2.3.10. IEEE Standard 1100-1992 – Recommended Practice for Power and 

Grounding Sensitive Electronic Equipment in Industrial and Commercial Power 

Systems (The IEEE Emerald Book) 

2.3.11. IEEE 802 Committees including: 

2.3.11.1. IEEE 802.1 – Higher Layer LAN Protocols 

2.3.11.2. IEEE 802.3 – Carrier Sense Multiple Access with Collision Detection 

(Ethernet) 

2.3.11.3. IEEE 802.8 – Fiber Optic Technology 

2.3.12. BICSI TDMM “Telecommunications Distribution Methods Manual” 9th 

Edition 

2.3.13. BICSI “LAN Design Manual” 3rd Edition 

2.3.14. Cisco’s Installation Manuals pertaining to each piece of equipment 

being installed 

2.3.15. Federal, state, and local codes, rules, regulations, and ordinances 

governing the work, are as fully parts of the specifications as if herein repeated 

or hereto attached.  If the contractor should note items in the drawings or the 

specifications, construction of which would be code violations, promptly call 

them to the attention of the owner's representative in writing.  Where the 

requirements of other sections of the specifications are more stringent than 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 17 of 49 

applicable codes, rules, regulations, and ordinances, the specifications shall 

apply. 

2.4.  Network Equipment - Switches 

This Request for Proposals is open to enterprise class switch suppliers, such as 

Cisco, HP and Extreme, provided that each supplier and the proposed equipment 

meet the qualifications outlined in this proposal.  All equipment should be 19” 

rack mountable and hardware for rack mounting should be included in the 

proposal where required.    

2.5. Network Assumptions - Responders to this RFP must provide specific 

specifications, but can assume the City will provide: 

2.5.1. Sufficient power and power outlets for all replacement equipment. 

2.5.2. HVAC for all replacement equipment. 

2.5.2.1. The successful vendor should plan on a two (2) hour routing, QoS and 

VLAN and QoS design and configuration review session with the City 

and its consultants. 

2.5.2.2. The successful vendor will be responsible for all VoIP related VLAN and 

QoS configurations on existing and replacement equipment. 

2.5.2.3. The City will provide the successful vendor with a configuration 

guideline for installation of new switches. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 18 of 49 

3.  Voice Requirements 

 

3.1. System Locations – Overview - The City is replacing its existing telephone 

systems at the locations detailed in Table 3.1. to address the City’s needs.   

 

3.2. Under this procurement the City will accept proposals for a VoIP solution from 

any manufacturer capable of meeting both the voice and data communications 

requirements detailed in this proposal. 

Table – 3.1 –City Locations 

 Street Address 

WAN 

Connections 

Civic Center Campus 
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

Cat 6 or 5e Copper 
Cable between 

buildings 

    City Hall 
232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

Cat 6 Copper 
Cable to Police  

and 5e to Senior 
Center 

    Police Department 242 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. Cat 6 Copper 
Cable to City Hall 

    Senior Center 222 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. Cat 5e Copper 
Cable to City Hall 

Public Works Maintenance Yard 
621 E. Sierra Madre Blvd 

Currently VPN over 
cable & DSL, will 
consider other 

options 

Library 

440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

Currently VPN over 
cable & bonded 
3Mbit T1, will 
consider other 

options 

3.3. System Configuration – Current - Voice communications services today for 

the facilities are primarily provided through analog and PRI service.  The existing 

lines at the City Hall and Yard are terminated with an Adtran TSU 120e and a 

Cisco 2600 at City Hall and an Adtran and Cisco 1600 series at the Yard.  The 

library is using a Centrex system that may be direct dial from City Hall. 

3.4. System Configuration – Quantities for Purposes of the RFP 

3.4.1. The proposed system must be configured to provide the quantities detailed in 

Table 3.3.1 below. 

City’s Telecommunications Requirements 

Location 

Station 

Type 1 

Station 

Type 2 

Station 

Type 3 

Station 

Type 4 

Station 

Type 5 

ACD 

Seats 

City Hall – Civic Center 1 34 2 3 2 2 

Police Department – 
Civic Center 

2 19 0 1 1 0 

Senior Center – Civic 
Center 

0 4 0 0 1 0 

Public Works 
Maintenance Yard 

1 6 0 1 1 0 

Library 2 13 1 1 1 0 

911 Console Integration 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 8 76 3 6 6 2 

 

Table 3.3.1 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 19 of 49 

 

3.5. Telephone station requirements 

3.5.1. Type 1 – A single-line analog station port or instrument. 8 Ports will 

terminate in existing analog devices, such as a 911 button, alarm, fax, etc.  

Faxing in the cloud will be considered. 

3.5.2. Type 2 – A minimum of 6-lines and display plus 8 programmable features, 

plus fixed or flexible feature keys for message retrieval, conference, forward, 

transfer and hold capabilities, message waiting notification, headset 

connectivity, a multi-line display, and a speakerphone. 

3.5.3. Type 3 – DSS/BLF The proposed solution should provide the City staff using 

this device to see view the calling status of up to 28 City staff throughout the 

system.  At least 28 must be visible by the stations indicated in this column.  

A physical “sidecar” type device is preferred over a PC display, but either will 

be considered.  Please provide a detailed description of this operation. 

3.5.4. Type 4 – Conference Room Station.  High quality wireless IP speaker phone 

designed to provide communication services in conference rooms of various 

sizes throughout the City locations.  Wireless application is preferred.  

3.5.5. Type 5 – Wireless/Mobile Telephone.  A multi-line display and headset 

connectivity would still be desired, if possible. 

3.5.6. Telephone sets must be provided with a minimum of 1Gigabit speed switch 

port. 

3.5.7. Section 6 will require pricing on all models of currently available station 

equipment. 

3.5.8. Please provide detailed description of the digital displays included with the 

proposed station hardware.  Specifically, we are interested in station sets that 

provide easily viewable displays with backlight, contrasting shades or colors 

for easy viewing. 

3.5.9. Wireless Headset Tools –  

3.5.9.1. Existing Headset Products – the City would like to retain their 

existing headset equipment, if possible.   The City currently uses 

Plantronics headsets purchased within the past 4 years. 

3.5.9.2. New Headsets - Please provide the operational details and cost for 1 

wireless headset solution to potentially be deployed in various departments 

in the City.   

3.5.9.2.1. Please describe the headset’s functionality as it relates to 

providing the ability to answer calls, place callers on hold, and 

transfer calls using controls on the headset itself. 

3.5.10. Wireless Handset – The City is interested in the use of telephones that 

can provide wireless handset mobility. Please describe the capability and 

whether the proposed system can provide this capability. 

 

3.6. Optional PSTN Trunking Requirements 

3.6.1. The proposed system must allow both T-1 and ISDN PRI circuits to terminate 

directly into proposed equipment if the carrier services require it. 

3.6.2. It would be desired that the systems be configured to provide analog 

trunking, as detailed by location in Table 3.3.1.  The analog trunks will 

provide back-up connectivity in the event of a PRI or WAN failure. 

3.6.3. Each location as indicated in Table 3.3.1 will have additional analog facilities 

to provide PSTN access in the event of a PRI, WAN, call processor, router, or 

any other hardware or software failure of the system.  The City is interested 

in systems that can provide survivability using these lines. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 20 of 49 

3.6.4. All DSU/CSU (if needed by your design) hardware must be included under the 

itemized costs of this proposal or fully specified if the City will need to acquire 

separately. 

3.6.5. The City currently uses Windows 7 and 8.1 desktop operating systems.  

Windows 10 will be implemented soon.  In a VoIP environment, please 

describe the operational impact on the attached PC if any one of the proposed 

telephone sets would fail. 

3.6.5.1. What impact would this have on the network connection through the 

telephone set to a PC? 

3.6.5.2. If the telephone set loses power, would there be an impact on an 

attached PC, given the City’s current PC environment?   

3.6.5.3. After a telephone set failure, please describe the restart process of 

telephone set. 

 

3.7. Integration with Existing 911 Console Dispatch System 

3.7.1. The City currently connects the existing Toshiba system to the AT&T Vesta 

911 dispatch system to provide the ability for non-emergency/administrative 

Police and City telephone extensions to appear on the Dispatcher’s console and 

screen. 

3.7.2. These connections appear to be analog station ports from the existing Toshiba 

telephone system to the existing Dispatch console system. 

3.7.3. Please provide information regarding how the proposed telephone system will 

be configured to address this need.   

3.7.4. If additional analog ports are required to provide this need, please include 

them in the telephone system configuration. 

  

3.8. Required Features – The City requires the proposed system to provide the 

following required features that should be included in the quote.  The feature 

descriptions are intentionally generic.   

3.8.1. If the proposed system is incapable of providing a specific functionality as 

described, provide a detailed explanation on any alternatives available in the 

proposed system to provide similar functionality. 

 

3.8.2. Abbreviated Dial with Off-Hook Indications - Capability to have a visual 

indication of the off-hook condition of another station and then automatically 

dial that station through the depression of an associated key. 

3.8.3. Account Codes 

3.8.4. Alarm Indication on Attendant Console 

3.8.5. Attendant Camp-on 

3.8.6. Attendant Console Silent button  

3.8.7. Attendant Console Join key 

3.8.8. Automatic Attendant Recall – Describe the options available to the City. 

3.8.9. Automatic Call Back - Describe the trunking application of this service.  Will 

auto-callback queue for a trunk group?  Must all callers accessing the trunk 

group be offered callback queuing? 

3.8.10. Automatic Hold - On a multi-line telephone, when a called party on an 

active line answers a second line, the first call is put automatically put on hold 

without the called party depressing a hold button. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 21 of 49 

3.8.11. Automatic Route Selection (ARS) 

3.8.12. Call Accounting System and Call Detail Reporting –   Please 

provide a proposal for a call accounting system.  Please itemize the cost of 

the system in the Optional Equipment Pricing table later in the RFP.  Please 

provide the following information regarding the proposed Call Accounting 

System: 

3.8.12.1. Describe the specific relationship with the manufacturer.   

3.8.12.2. Include the cost of the recommended product in Section 6 of the 

detailed pricing. 

3.8.12.3. Reports for the proposed call accounting system should provide the 

ability for the City to obtain reports providing calling activities for all 

stations, allocate calling expenses to various departments, Price each 

call, length of calls, frequency of calls to a specific number, internal 

station to station calling. etc.  Please describe the functions of both the 

proposed system(s).  

3.8.12.4. The proposed telecommunications system and Call Accounting System 

should provide the ability for the City to obtain call accounting 

information for both outgoing and incoming calls.  Please provide a 

description regarding how the system can provide this function.  

3.8.12.5. The City would also like to be able to gather information regarding 

internal station-to-station calling.  Please describe the proposed 

system’s capabilities to provide this capability. 

3.8.12.6. Please define if the proposed system is hosted and if so the specific 

operation, location and method of connectivity. 

3.8.12.6.1. Your description should also include any monthly costs.  Please 

provide details.    

3.8.12.7. Please define the number of times a specific extension can appear on 

phones throughout the system.   

3.8.13. Call Forward-Busy 

3.8.14. Call Forward-No Answer 

3.8.15. Call Forward-Variable 

3.8.16. Call Forward-External Telephone Number - How is this feature activated?  

Can a remote user deactivate the feature?  Can a remote user invoke the 

feature?  Can a remote user program a new external target?  Can the 

system detect a busy/do not answer condition at the external target, and 

then route to a different, pre-defined, internal or external target?  

3.8.17. Call Forward-All Calls 

3.8.18. Call Hold 

3.8.19. Outbound Caller ID – Please describe the proposed system’s capabilities to 

allow the City to define the telephone number provided when individuals 

place calls outside the system.   

3.8.20. Incoming Caller ID – Please define the proposed system’s capabilities 

to provide incoming caller ID. 

3.8.21. Call Park – Please describe the operation of the call park function, 

specifically how the call park number is provided to the user, the length of 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 22 of 49 

time the number remains on the screen, how the parked call recalls if 

unanswered, etc.  

3.8.22. Call Pickup (Directed and Group) Please describe any limitations regarding 

the number of telephones that can be included in a single pick up group.  

Please describe any limitations on the number of pick up groups the 

system can provide. 

3.8.23. Call Routing - Describe in detail the programming sequence for routing 

busy and unanswered calls.  How many destinations or targets (i.e., if A is 

busy go to B, if B is busy go to C, if C is busy go to D, etc.) can be 

programmed for external calls?  For internal calls?  Can the routing be 

different for external and internal calls?  Can different routing sequences 

be employed dependent on time-of-day?  Day-of-week? Can a routing 

sequence have first an external target, and if that target is busy or does 

not answer, then look to an internal target?   

3.8.23.1. Can routing to voicemail greetings be different for internal and 

external calls?  

3.8.24. Call Transfer (Screened and Unscreened) - Specify any limitations on the 

retention of caller ID, trunk group ID, or DNIS ID information in 

transferring.  That is, will there ever be a loss of caller identification 

because of multiple transfers of a single call?  If so, specify the 

information that will be lost and after how many transfers will the loss 

occur. 

3.8.25. Call Waiting Indication (Visual and Audible) 

3.8.26. Camp-On (from Other Extensions) 

3.8.27. Class of Service (COS) - The system should allow a system manager to 

set access privileges for each extension. 

3.8.28. Click to Dial Function – OPTIONAL - The system should provide the 

capability for City staff to select a contact in their Outlook contacts and 

click on the telephone numbers for those contacts and have the system 

dial without lifting the handset to dial the call.   

3.8.28.1. If this is an optional feature, please provide the cost for this 

functionality in the optional equipment/feature table. 

3.8.29. Conferencing - What is the total number of callers that can participate in a 

conference call?  How many internal callers?  How many external callers?  

Is there a limit on the number of conferences occurring simultaneously in 

the proposed system?  If so, what is the limit? 

3.8.30. DNIS Compatibility 

3.8.31. Distinctive Ringing – Is there a different ring tone for internal vs. external 

call?  

3.8.32. Directory - Describe the capability of the proposed station sets to provide 

a name database look-up through the display.  Is there a single key 

depression dialing of a name appearing in the display?  Is this 

functionality transparent between systems? 

3.8.33. Do Not Disturb 

3.8.34. Executive Busy Override 

3.8.35. Incoming Line Identification 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 23 of 49 

3.8.36. Hot Desk Operation – Allow system users to log in and log out of 

telephones throughout the system. 

3.8.37. Paging and Intercom Operation – The system should provide the ability for 

the City to define specific stations to be included in an intercom.  This 

system should also provide the ability for the City to perform pages 

throughout the system.  The page groups would be defined for each 

location. Please explain this operation and proposed system capabilities.  

3.8.37.1. The proposed system should provide the ability for the City to connect 

existing overhead-external paging systems to it and allow users to dial a 

code on the phone for access.  The City currently does not have overhead 

paging, but over the life of this system, it is possible an overhead paging 

system may be added. 

3.8.38. Last Number Redial 

3.8.39. Line Privacy - When active, this feature should prevent all other parties 

from breaking into a call. 

3.8.40. Music on Hold - Can Music-on-hold be applied on a station selective 

basis? 

3.8.40.1. Can the City have different pre-recorded music on hold 

announcements for each department?  These announcements would 

be continually looped and allowing the department to customize the 

announcement and heard by callers when waiting on hold.      

  

3.8.41. Mute key  

3.8.42. Night Answer Mode   

3.8.43. Incoming Caller ID – Ability to provide caller ID information for system 

users.  This should provide internal extensions as well as any caller ID 

information sent to the proposed system by the PSTN. 

3.8.44. Outbound Caller ID – Ability to assign outgoing caller ID individually by 

station.  For example, the customer service group may need to send out 

the main list number, while the accounting and finance groups may 

choose to send out their own DID number on outgoing calls. 

3.8.45. Remote Call Forwarding – Ability to invoke or change call forward target 

from a remote location.  That location may be either another phone on the 

system or at a location not on the system. 

3.8.46. Remote Diagnostics/Remote Maintenance 

3.8.47. Save/Repeat Dialing 

3.8.48. Speed Dialing (System, Group, and Station – specify quantities) 

3.8.49. Station – to – Station Intercom - Capability to depress a specific key, dial 

a two-digit code, activate a line associated with a specific key on another 

station, and on answer establish a talk-path. 

3.8.50. Station-to-Station Paging – Please describe the options and limitations 

regarding the proposed system’s ability to provide paging functionality 

through the speakers on the proposed phones. 

3.8.51. Station Hunting – Circular - Busy station has a specific station to which 

calls are routed and hunting sequence is identical each time a call occurs.  

That is, station A hunts to B, which hunts to C, which hunts to D.  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 24 of 49 

3.8.52. Station Hunting – Distributed - Busy station hunts to a group of stations, 

and the hunting sequence are random.  That is, A hunts to B, C, or D 

based on random selection. 

3.8.53. Traffic Measurement/Traffic Reports - The proposed system should provide 

basic traffic information and make this information available through the 

System Management device provided.  This information should be 

sufficiently detailed so that the proposed administration system can 

produce traffic reports. covering: 

3.8.53.1. Blockage per trunk 

3.8.53.2. Blockage per trunk group 

3.8.53.3. Specific hunt group information 

3.8.53.4. Feature utilization 

3.8.53.5. Internal station to station calling 

For the traffic measurement information listed above, please answer the 

following questions: 

 How is this information made available?   

 

 Can the customer develop customized reports?  How long can the system 

store the information before customer retrieval? 

 

 If data storage is limited can the data be moved to another media type and 

archived?   

 

 Please describe the recommended solution to address this need.  

 

 What database or software tool format is used for this data? 

 

3.8.54. Transfer Call back to Attendant 

3.8.55. Twinning – Please include the ability for the system to provide twinning to 

interact with the City’s mobile devices.  The operation should allow City 

system users, while on a cell phone call, to be able to arrive back at the 

office, dial a code on the cell (or desk phone) and move the call to/from 

the desk phone. 

3.8.55.1. Please quote the cost for 15 optional twinning licenses.  These will be 

used within various City locations.   

3.8.56. Unassigned Numbers - What happens when an internal caller dials an 

unassigned telephone number?  What happens when an external caller 

dials an unassigned DID number?  Please detail all options. 

3.8.57. Variable Ring-tones on Telephone Stations - How many ring-tones are 

available on the proposed digital and/or IP telephones? Can the user 

change the ring-tones? 

3.8.58. Voice Announce Intercom – Ability to dial a one or two digit number and 

automatically connect to another phone in a hands free mode. 

3.8.59. Variable Call Recording – Ideally, the City would like the system to allow 

internal or external calls to stations be recorded On Demand from any 

station on the system and allows easy access to retrieving these 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 25 of 49 

recordings.  Please describe any options for the proposed system to 

provide various levels of recording dynamically vs. recording all calls.     

3.8.59.1.1. Please describe how the proposed system stores the recording, 

how they are indexed and how the City would retrieve various call 

recordings. 

3.8.59.1.2. Please describe the retention capabilities of the recording 

system.  Can recordings be set to be retained for X number of days 

and automatically purged? 

 

3.8 Required ACD Features – the City desires the proposed telephone system to be 

equipped with the following ACD features.  This feature will be used in the 

Community Service department at the City Hall complex.  

3.8.1 The number of required ACD seats for each location is included on the 3.3.1. 

table.  The ACD Stations needed are counted in the station count for each 

location on the same table. 

3.8.1.1 2 should be ACD Agents 

3.8.1.2 1 should be Supervisors 

3.8.2 Please define what the proposed system will do when the agent in a single 

person ACD group is logged out.   

3.8.3 Will the system allow the City to use an Automated Attendant to answer, will 

it forward or overflow?   

3.8.3.1 Please provide a review of the options for the City.   

3.8.4 The City would like the proposed system to allow for the ACD to operate 

seamlessly in all locations shown on table 3.3.1.  This seamless operation 

includes both functional call routing and reporting information.  

3.8.5 For each feature listed, indicate if the feature is “standard” or “optional”.  

Include any feature indicated as “optional” in the itemized pricing in Section 

6.  Due to the wide variety of system features, it is possible that the proposed 

system might not have all the features listed below.  If this is the case, please 

provide an explanation on any alternatives available in the proposed system 

to provide similar functionality. 

3.8.6 ACD Reporting - Include complete feature documentation including the 

following: 

3.8.6.1 ACD Queue Projected Hold Time Announcements 

3.8.6.2 ACD Queue Caller in Queue Count 

3.8.6.3 ACD Queue should offer the callers in queue an option to leave a 

message to be called back.  The resulting message should be placed in 

the queue allowing the caller retain their original place in line.  The 

system should then present the message to the agent for the return call.   

3.8.6.3.1 Please provide information regarding how the return call is 

presented to the agent and whether the system will automatically 

place the call.   

3.8.6.4 Archiving capability 

3.8.6.5 Average Speed of Answer  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 26 of 49 

3.8.6.6 Report generation capability for a system to support all ACD agents on 

the system. 

3.8.6.7 Hold time for abandon calls (including short call abandon report) 

3.8.6.8 Easy access to historical information 

3.8.6.9 Describe the proposed systems’ ability to provide information regarding 

the number of calls each agent gets by split 

3.8.6.10 Ability to track times when calls were in queue and how many there 

were and how long they were in queue 

3.8.6.11 How many calls each agent receives from each queue type  

3.8.6.12 Remote Agents – The City may in the future require the ability to have 

remote telecom users log in and take calls just as if they were in City 

Hall on one system.  These users may have DSL or broadband 

connectivity to the City network.  Please describe the call delivery 

method for ACD calls using the proposed system and if there is an 

additional cost for this capability. 

Please provide an optional quote for the needed software for this 

function. 

3.8.6.13 Call taking features, call center functionality, and call center reporting 

capabilities should be the same for all agents, whether they are in City 

Hall or any City locations or a remote agent.  Please describe in detail 

any differences that apply for the three types of agents 

3.8.7 ACD Alerts 

3.8.7.1 Supervisors Alerts – The City is interested in allowing the supervisors to 

choose between either audible or visual alerts.  Alerts should provide 

the supervisor with notification of various conditions that exceed certain 

City definable thresholds. 

3.8.8 Agent Licenses – The proposed system should include licenses necessary to 

provide for agents, groups and supervisors as identified in Table 3.3.1. 

3.8.9 ACD agents answer calls directed to personal DID while logged in as an agent.  

A call directed to an agent’s personal DID should follow pre-assigned call 

routing if the agent chooses not to answer.  Incoming caller ID information for 

the next incoming call should be provided to the agent’s display while on a 

call.  

3.8.10 Agents in Multiple Groups 

3.8.10.1 Does the proposed system allow agents to be logged in, actively taking 

calls, in more than one split?  If so, does this require multiple log-ins?  

Multiple lines? 

3.8.10.2 Is the agent provided notification prior to answer of which split the call 

is coming from?  If an agent is logged into two splits, does that count 

as two agents in determining system capacities? 

3.8.11 Announcements 

3.8.11.1 A single ACD split must be able to answer for multiple caller and 

multiple applications.  The City is interested in supplying customized 

caller announcements in queue, based on the called number. 

3.8.11.2 Each ACD group must be provided with at least two (2) recorded 

individualized recorded announcements. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 27 of 49 

 

3.9 Disaster Recovery Issues 

3.9.1 System Outages 

3.9.1.1 When software maintenance is performed on the system, is a restart 

required?   

3.9.1.2 Typically, what will the duration of a system restart be for a system of 

this size?   

3.9.1.3 What, if any manual intervention is required for a restart? 

3.9.1.4 In the event of a primary processor failure, is the system configured 

with a backup processor?  If so, describe the processor failover 

procedure. 

3.9.2 Disaster Back-up Service 

Please indicate what resources are available to restore service promptly if the 

equipment is damaged by a disaster such as fire, flood, etc., or after a total 

system failure. 

3.9.3 Software Back-up & Restoration 

Describe the process for downloading the system software to a back-up 

media.  What is the recommended media?  Do you provide the media?  Is the 

back-up process manual or automatic?  Do you provide a remote back up for 

the telephony programming? The voice mail? Both? Can they be backed-up 

simultaneously?  On the same media?  As part of a maintenance contract will 

your personnel perform the back up and keep off-site spare? 

3.10 911 Compatibility 

3.10.1 Describe how the proposed system will provide street address information to 

the local Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP).   

3.10.1.1 Include any costs - software, equipment and/or telephone utility – 

required to accomplish this notification in the pricing section.   

3.10.1.2 It will be the responsibility of the selected vendor to provide for this 

capability and demonstrate to the customer, through live testing, this 

capability is operative prior to system cutover. 

3.10.2 Provide specific documentation indicating your proposed system complies with 

all 911 regulations of the FCC, the State of California.   

3.10.2.1 How can the proposed system provide for 911-location notification by 

station number?   

3.10.2.2 As an option in Section 6, provide the necessary hardware and 

software to provide this feature.  Please include all relevant telephone 

utility costs. 

3.11 System Management - The following System Administration features and 

capabilities, or functional equivalents, must be provided as part of the proposed 

system.  These features must be available at all locations. 

3.11.1 Multiple Users - The system must interface to the Local Area Network (LAN) 

and allow for access and change capability for multiple, simultaneous users. 

3.11.2 Printed faceplates for the proposed phones are not acceptable.   

3.11.3 Inventory Information - The system must provide inventory information on 

the number and type of telephone stations. 

3.11.4 Trunking Information – the system must provide access to the information 

required in Table 3.3.1. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 28 of 49 

3.11.5 Alarm Notification – System must provide for an alarm system that notifies 

both the remote maintenance center and the client, if certain client-

programmed system performance thresholds are exceeded. 

3.11.6 Recent & Past Change History - The proposed system must provide 

documentation on both recent changes to an element of the system (station, 

trunks, etc.) and all past changes to an element of the system.  

3.12 Handset Wall Mount Kits 

3.12.1 The City may require the use of wall mount kits for some of the telephone 

sets.  

3.12.2 Please indicate the pricing for these wall mount kits in your proposal as an 

OPTION. 

3.13 Training 

3.13.1 Include in your proposal a detailed explanation of the training you will provide 

for station users, as well as the management and system administrators.  

Please indicate on which functions the system administrator will be trained. 

3.13.2 The system pricing detailed in Section 6 must include: 

3.13.2.1 Classroom training, on working telephones, led by vendor provided 

instructors, for all users, on-site at the City. 

3.13.2.2 System programming, reporting, management, and configuration 

training, led by vendor provided instructors, for 2 management 

personnel. 

3.13.2.3 Please describe additional system administration and technical training 

that is available.  Please include the projected costs for the training 

classes, where they are held, who provides them and if and what 

certifications would be provided if City staff completes various levels.  

3.14     Acceptance - The City requires an acceptance period of at least 30 days 

subsequent to the completion of the Cutover.  During this 30-day period the 

system must perform without interruption of services and in compliance with all 

representations offered in the vendor’s proposal.  Should the system or other 

associated devices fail to perform satisfactorily, the 30-day time frame for 

acceptance will start over until such time as the system performance is 

satisfactory for a period of 30 consecutive days.  Final payment (including change 

orders) will be withheld, and the warranty period will not begin, until system 

acceptance. 

3.15 Financial Information - Detailed pricing information is needed on the system.  

Provide the following financial data: 

3.15.1 The response to Section 6 MUST INCLUDE an itemized schedule of all 

equipment and software for the proposed system.  The pricing quoted 

must include all activities necessary for a complete, turn-key system, 

including, but not limited to: 

3.15.1.1 Complete installation of all system components and software 

3.15.1.2 Complete programming of all system components and software 

3.15.1.3 Complete testing of all system components and software prior to 

system cutover, including QOS testing. 

3.15.1.4 PSTN coordination including: 

3.15.1.4.1 Coordination of PRI and analog trunk installation, if required, with 

the PSTN service provider selected by the City 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 29 of 49 

3.15.1.4.2 Coordination of calling plan to allow for 3-digit dialing between 

stations 

3.15.1.5 On-site station reviews and determination of user requirements 

3.15.1.6 Full system configuration documentation provided to the City to 

include all station features and function, complete trunking 

configuration information, and complete call flow information by 

station 

3.15.2 Cost detail for any non-standard features and optional items as detailed in the 

system specifications.   

3.15.3 Any additional charges which apply for shipping and handling.  Please specify 

dollar amounts.   

3.15.4 A recommended payment schedule must be included.  The customer will not 

consider any proposal with a final payment, due on acceptance of the system, 

of less than 25%. 

3.15.5 Add/delete cost schedule for all system components, software, and station 

equipment - details on addition or deletion of all network components must 

be included in Section 6.  Include both pre-cut and post-cut prices.  Indicate 

how long the post-cut prices will remain in effect.  Pre-cut component pricing 

must remain in effect through system acceptance. 

3.15.6 Maintenance costs for the system for Year 1 and for Year 2, as configured.  

Please show each year separately.  Please describe any Parts Labor Warranty 

included in the proposal. This information should be included in Section 6.  

Clearly specify the warranty period for all hardware and software 

components.  Maintenance costs should be itemized by component.  A specific 

maintenance cost must be clearly itemized for business day service on all 

proposed equipment and software. 

3.16 Estimated Implementation Plan – Please provide an estimated 

implementation plan with various milestones assuming the contract would be 

awarded May 2016.   

 

3.17 References 

3.17.1 Provide at least 3 references of similar installed systems in the area, using 

the tables provided below – expanding them as necessary to include all 

relevant information.  The references must be for VoIP Enabled or VoIP 

system installations, multi-locations customers, with a minimum of 50 

telephone stations, and a centralized voice mail system. 

3.17.2 While you are free to provide any references, ideally, the City would like to 

talk with other local government references. 

3.17.3 The City may wish to conduct site visits with one or more of the references 

provided below. 

3.17.4 Be advised, references are a major element of the customer’s selection 

criteria. 

Reference #1  

Customer Name  

Contact Name  

Contact Address  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP The City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 30 of 49 

Contact Telephone 

Number  

Contact E-mail  

Installation Date of 

Comparative System  

Description of 

Comparative System – 

please be specific and 

detailed on # of locations 

& phones  

  

 

 

Reference #2  

Customer Name  

Contact Name  

Contact Address  

Contact Telephone 

Number  

Contact E-mail  

Installation Date of 

Comparative System  

Description of 

Comparative System – 

please be specific and 

detailed on # of locations 

& phones  

 

 

Reference #3  

Customer Name  

Contact Name  

Contact Address  

Contact Telephone 

Number  

Contact E-mail  

Installation Date of 

Comparative System  

Description of 

Comparative System – 

please be specific and 

detailed on # of locations 

& phones  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 31 of 49 

4. Voice Mail System 

 

The City requires voice mail functionality as part of this procurement.  The proposed 

voice mail system must be compatible and integrate with the system being proposed.  

The vendor is required to gather configuration information and provide a turn-key 

installation. 

The proposed system should allow the City to define a call coverage forwarding path 

depending upon if the call to the station is an internal or external call.  It should allow 

the City to define by Station how the user would like his or her telephone to forward 

to the coverage point or voicemail.  A coverage point is defined as any other phone 

on the system or the voicemail system.  Please explain how the proposed system 

could deal with this circumstance. 

4.1.  System Configuration 

4.1.1. The City estimates a requirement for 95 initial users of the voice system.  

Clearly indicate the number of simultaneous calls the system will support as 

configured and the overall storage capacity, in hours, as the system is 

configured.  The number of users is greater than the proposed telephone 

station counts because there are a number of the City employees or 

departmental functions that require a voicemail box, but do not have a 

telephone station on the system.  

 

4.1.2. The City provides Voicemail Boxes for many users throughout the City 

operation that do not have specific phones and will be using the Hot Desking 

operation to log in and log out of the system.  Please describe the operation 

of the voicemail system in this environment. 

 

4.1.3. The City requires no less than 12 simultaneous calls. 

4.2. Specify the maximum capacity the proposed system provides.   

4.3. Features - Specifically, the proposed system must have the following features: 

4.3.1. Announcement Boxes 

4.3.2. Immediately light a message-waiting lamp on the appropriate telephone when 

a message has been taken.  This message waiting indication must be 

noticeable. 

4.3.3. Automatically turn the message-waiting lamp off when all the messages have 

been heard and/or delivered. 

4.3.4. Provide for automatically forwarding calls from a busy, unanswered, or call 

forward telephone to the appropriate mailbox without requiring the caller to 

dial a mailbox number or any additional codes. 

4.3.5. If the caller does not wish to leave a message, the proposed system must 

allow the caller to escape from the voice mail system to a pre-programmed 

extension number.  The system must allow for multiple targets for these 

“escape” calls.  Does the proposed system have any limitation on the number 

of targets per system?  Can the target be a telephone number outside the 

proposed system? 

4.3.6. Allow an external caller to finish a message by simply hanging up.  Systems 

that require the caller to touch a key on the telephone pad to save a message 

will not be considered. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 32 of 49 

4.3.7. Archive Messages - Describe the options for archiving stored messages and 

the process to accomplish this function.  Clearly define the tasks of both 

station users and system administrators in the archiving function. 

4.3.8. Check Receipt of Delivered Messages 

4.3.9. Does the proposed voicemail system capture caller ID allowing the user to 

optionally hear the calling number? 

4.3.10. Changeable Passwords 

4.3.10.1. Can the user change passwords? 

4.3.10.2. Can the user be forced to change passwords? 

4.3.10.3. If so, can the administrator establish the frequency of the change? 

4.3.10.4. If so, by system or by station? 

4.3.10.5. What is the minimum password length?  Maximum? 

4.3.10.6. Will the system provide a “lock-out” after input of invalid passwords? 

4.3.10.7. If so, is the number of invalid entries programmable by the user? Or is 

it system controlled? 

4.3.10.8. Can the voice mail password be the same as the user’s network 

password? 

4.3.11. Forward & Backward while Listening to a Message - Does the proposed 

system provide the capability to allow a user, when listening to a 

message, to skip ahead to a later part of the message, or backward to a 

past part of the message?  Please be specific. 

4.3.12. Guest Mailboxes 

4.3.13. Group Mailboxes 

4.3.14. Message Save 

4.3.15. Message Delete 

4.3.16. Message Pause 

4.3.17. Message Privacy 

4.3.18. Message Replay – explain the options available 

4.3.19. Message Redirect and Comment 

4.3.20. Message Respond 

4.3.21. Message Retrieval Greeting - Explain the available options for the system 

greeting the caller hears upon retrieving messages.  For instance, does 

the system indicate the number of messages not yet heard?    

4.3.22. Message Rewind 

4.3.23. Message Speed - Does the proposed system provide the user the 

capability to speed up or slow down the replay of the message?   

4.3.24. Message Undelete 

4.3.25. Outbound Notification of Messages - This feature must include notification 

to a radio paging device, cellular telephone, email, or other telephony 

equipment. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 33 of 49 

4.3.26. Priority Notification of messages - This feature must allow a caller to select 

a priority or urgent status for message notification, and then provide for 

an alternative notification capability.  For instance, a normal message may 

light a message-waiting lamp, while a priority message will out-call to a 

radio pager. 

4.3.27. Priority Queuing of Messages 

4.3.28. Recent and Past Change History - Describe the capabilities of the 

proposed system to provide documentation on both recent changes to an 

element of the system (mailbox, port, etc.) and all past changes to an 

element of the system.  

4.3.29. Skip Forward Through Messages 

4.3.30. Personalized Greetings – Multiple – Provide (at a minimum) the system 

users with the ability to have a greeting when there is no answer at their 

phone and another different greeting when they are on the phone, and 

explain any other options available. 

4.3.30.1. Specifically, the City uses Temporary Absence Greetings throughout the 

operation.  Please describe the proposed system’s capabilities regarding 

this specific feature.   

4.3.31. Personalized Greetings – Menu - Will the system provide a menu of 

options in an individual user’s greeting?  For instance, “If your call is 

about A, press 1.  If your call is personal matter, press 2.”  If the caller 

selects 1, the message is recorded simultaneously in two pre-selected 

mailboxes, or routed to a different mailbox than if the caller selects 2. 

4.3.32. Scheduled Delivery of Message 

4.3.33. Speech Recognition - Can the proposed system provide command access 

through user speech?  If so, clearly describe the functionality, features, 

limitations, and as an option provide pricing for all required system 

hardware and software components to implement this feature. 

4.3.34. Message Distribution Lists - Please provide a detailed explanation of the 

procedure for creating and broadcasting a voice mail message to voice 

mail users in a distribution list.  Clearly define any limitations on the 

number of distribution lists per user and the number of users per 

distribution list.  Can distribution list be “chained” to effectively increase 

the number of users per list?  Is there a system-wide broadcast 

capability?  If so, how is it controlled and managed for sending and 

receiving? 

4.3.35. Remote Access - The system must allow users to access their mailbox 

from outside of the system without the assistance of an operator. 

4.3.36. System Administrator Reports - Please indicate what types of 

management reports are available with the proposed equipment.  Also, 

indicate if additional hardware/software is required to generate the 

management reports.   

The City requires these reports to be able to be obtained in both printed and 

electronic format.  Please indicate if this is included and what the electronic 

format used.  If the reports are in a proprietary form, please describe any 

conversion process. 

Please indicate whether the proposed voicemail system will provide City with 

the ability to review voicemail box activity and when each box was accessed.  

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 34 of 49 

This feature may provide a valuable tool to determine if voicemail boxes are 

being checked and managed.  

4.3.37. Variable Settings for Maximum Message Length 

4.3.38. Time-of-Day Stamp 

4.4. Training 

4.4.1. Include in the proposal a detailed explanation of the training you will provide 

for voice mail users, as well as the system administrators.  Please indicate on 

which functions the system administrator will be trained.  At a minimum these 

must include station programming and system back-ups. 

4.4.2. The system pricing detailed in Section 6 must include: 

4.4.2.1. Classroom training, on working telephones, led by vendor provided 

instructors, for a minimum of 60 users. 

4.4.2.2. System programming, reporting, management and configuration 

training, led by vendor provided instructors, for 2 management 

personnel. 

4.4.2.3. Please describe additional system administration and technical training 

that is available.  Please include the projected costs for the training 

classes, where they are held, who provides them and what 

certifications would be provided if City staff completes various levels.  

4.5. Automated Attendant Function – The City will use Automated Attendant 

function for the City to handle various types of incoming calls.  The City currently 

has 2 automated attendant operation.  Direct Inward Dialing will be used in 

conjunction with this function.  The automated attendant should provide functions 

for the following: 

4.5.1. After Hours Announcement, access to directory, names and options. 

4.5.2. Preprogrammed Alternative for Holidays. 

4.5.3. Custom greetings for special events. 

4.5.3.1. The City’s personnel want the ability to prerecord messages and/or 

greetings for holidays, office closings, etc. and to change from one 

greeting to another from a remote location, not on the system.  Please 

explain in detail how this would be accomplished. 

4.5.4. Provide various exits from the Automated Attendant. 

4.5.5. The system must allow the caller to dial his or her choice at any time during 

the message. 

4.5.6. Does the proposed system require callers to end all commands using the # 

sign?  Please describe what the operation is and if there are options regarding 

this item. 

4.6. Message Integration 

4.6.1. Describe the proposed system’s capability to provide for “unified messaging”.  

The City utilizes Microsoft Exchange 2010 messaging system and may migrate 

to Office 365 in Microsoft’s cloud.  Pricing for unified messaging for all voice 

mail users must be included in Section 6.    

4.6.2. Does the proposed unified messaging software integrate directly with 

Microsoft Exchange?  Does it provide direct dialing from the Contact list?  If 

so, please describe how the products integrate. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 35 of 49 

4.6.3. Does the proposed unified messaging software integrate directly with a 

combination of Microsoft Outlook 2013 and 2016?  If so, please describe how 

the products integrate and what mail protocol options are available. 

4.6.4. Which electronic mail protocol(s) does the Unified Messaging system support? 

4.6.4.1. IMAP, POP3, SMTP, others? 

4.6.4.2. Please discuss the pros and cons of each in a Unified Messaging 

environment with Exchange server & Outlook clients. 

4.6.5. When a voice message is received in a Unified Messaging environment, will 

the entire voice message be transmitted to Exchange in addition to header 

information?  If not, what will the user see in Outlook when they have 

received a voice message?  Will it transcribe? 

4.6.6. How will the Unified Messaging interface handle roaming profiles?  i.e. where 

a staff member utilizes several PCs to access electronic mail through Outlook? 

4.6.7. Please describe where the voicemail messages will be stored and whether the 

messages will be stored on a voicemail appliance or the Exchange server.     

4.6.8. Will the user be able to listen to voice messages through Outlook Web Access 

2010? 

4.6.9. In the experience of the vendor, on average, how much disk space does an 

average message consume within Outlook?  Are any compression algorithms 

available to reduce disk utilization? 

 

4.6.10. Click to Dial Operation – Please describe how the system can provide click 

to dial operation from various sources including outlook contacts and other 

sources.    

 

4.7. Financial Information - Please provide the following financial data: 

4.7.1. The response to Section 6 MUST INCLUDE an itemized schedule of all 

equipment and software for the proposed system.  The pricing quoted 

must include: 

4.7.1.1. Complete installation of all system components and software 

4.7.1.2. Complete programming of all system components and software 

4.7.1.3. Complete testing of all system components and software prior to 

system cutover, including QOS testing 

4.7.1.4. On-site station reviews and determination of user requirements 

4.7.1.5. Full system configuration documentation provided to the City to 

include all user features and function and complete call flow 

information by station 

4.7.2. Any additional charges which apply for shipping and handling.  Please specify 

dollar amount. 

4.7.3. A recommended payment schedule must be included.  The customer will not 

consider any proposal with a final payment, due on acceptance of the system, 

of less than 25%. 

4.7.4. Add/delete cost schedule for all system components and software.  Include 

both pre-cut and post-cut prices.  Indicate how long the post-cut prices will 

remain in effect.  Pre-cut component pricing must remain in effect through 

system acceptance. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 36 of 49 

4.7.5. Maintenance cost for the system, as configured, after the warranty period. 

Clearly specify the warranty period for all hardware and software 

components.   

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 37 of 49 

5. Maintenance and Warranty 

5.1. Warranty - Provide a copy of the warranty on the proposed system or a 

narrative description of the provisions of the warranty. 

5.2. Factory-Trained Personnel - Indicate the number of service personnel in the 

greater Los Anageles or San Gabriel Valley areas factory-trained to maintain the 

proposed system, including the street address of the service location.   

5.3. Qualified Personnel - Indicate the number of service personnel in the same 

area qualified to maintain the proposed system, including the street addresses of 

the service locations.  This should include factory-trained personnel, personnel 

trained by the vendor and all other individuals who can perform technical services 

on the system. 

5.4. Service Centers - Provide the locations and hours of operation of the service 

centers to be utilized. 

5.4.1. The City may wish to conduct a site visit to the contractors’ Service Center. 

5.5. Spare Parts - Provide a general listing of the spare parts available from each of 

these service centers. 

5.6. Maintenance Plans - Provide details on maintenance service arrangements for 

the proposed system and the cost for any alternative available including 

maintenance contracts and per-call maintenance.  Provide the monthly 

maintenance contract price based on the initial equipped configuration including 

details on how this price is computed.  The City is capable of performing some 

basic maintenance routines.  Please provide information on any charges 

associated with customer provided maintenance. 

5.7. Hourly Service Rates - Indicate the hourly rate the City can expect for service 

not covered by warranty or service contract for each of the proposed systems. 

5.8. Maintenance Cost Escalation - Provide the rate at which the maintenance 

contract costs are escalated including any contractual limits in escalation of costs. 

5.9. Modification Lead-Time - Specify the amount of lead-time required for moves, 

changes, additions, and deletions. 

5.10. Repair Response Times - Describe the expected and guaranteed response time 

for “regular” and “emergency” services.  Indicate what you define to be “regular” 

and “emergency” service.  Guaranteed response times of greater than 4-hours 

for emergency services, and next business day for regular services, will not be 

acceptable. 

5.11. Service Alternatives - Indicate the provisions for service and spare parts if your 

business terminates, is subjected to a strike, or shutdown for any reason. 

5.12. Default - State what recourse is available if the proposed system does not 

perform as quoted and the customer is faced with loss or interruption of service.  

Be advised that some form of liquidated damages for non-performance and/or 

system failure will be required in any final agreement. 

5.13. Performance of Maintenance - Clearly identify if the proposer or a third party 

will provide maintenance services.  The City will require the right to reject any 

third parties or sub-contractors under this agreement and in any event proposer 

will be responsible for all maintenance services. 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 38 of 49 

5.14. Remote Maintenance 

5.14.1. Provide information on the capabilities of the system to interact with 

the Remote Maintenance Center (RMC) of the proposer. 

5.14.2. How does the system notify the RMC of a trouble? 

5.14.3. What diagnostic capabilities does the RMC have? 

5.14.4. Can the customer communicate directly with RMC personnel? 

5.14.5. How frequent is the proposed system polled by the RMC for routine 

maintenance? 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 39 of 49 

6. Pricing  

 

6.1. Pricing - Expand the following tables as required to provide itemized, component 

pricing for the proposed system to meet the requirements.  The component name 

should be clear and understandable, not a code or stock number.  The Discounted 

Price must be the actual cost the City will pay for the component, not a list price 

with a summary discount at the end.  Total Price equals the Quantity times the 

Discounted Price. 

6.1.1. Telecommunications system as defined in Section 2, 3, & 4.  Include all 

required components. 

Table 6.1.1 

 

 

Component - Name 

 

 

Qty 

 

 Unit Price 

Install 

Price 

 

Total 

(List all component parts of 
the system) 

    

     

City Hall     

 <<Expand to show 
equipment pricing needed 
for each site>>> 

    

Police Department     

 <<Expand to show 
equipment pricing needed 
for each site>>> 

    

Senior Center     

 <<Expand to show 
equipment pricing needed 
for each site>>> 

    

Public Works Maintenance 
Yard 

    

 <<Expand to show 
equipment pricing needed 
for each site>>> 

    

Library     

 <<Expand to show 
equipment pricing needed 
for each site>>> 

    

     

     

Required Telephone 

Stations 
    

     
Voicemail System     
Unified Messaging     
     
     
     
Sub-total – Hardware / 
Software 

    

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 40 of 49 

Shipping     
General Install & Training     
Taxes      
Total Purchase Price     

 

 

6.1.2. Telephone Stations – Provide individual unit and installation costs for all 

telephone sets available for the proposed system, consoles and soft consoles 

currently available, if not included in Section 6.1.1. 

 

Table 6.1.3 

Model Number 

 Unit 

Price 

Install  

Price 

Total  

    

    

    

    

 

 

 

6.1.3. E-911 Station Locator Capability (OPTIONAL COSTS) 

Table 6.1.4 

Component - Name Qty  Unit Price 
Install 

Price 
Total  

(List all component parts 

of the system) 

    

Sub-total – Hardware / 

Software 

    

Shipping     

General Install & Training     

Taxes      

Total Purchase Price     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 41 of 49 

6.1.4. Maintenance Pricing – Maintenance Pricing should include the following:  

 24x7 Coverage 

 24x7 Remote System Monitoring and Alarming for the 

Telecommunications system, voicemail system and all other parts of 

the system proposed.  

 12 Months Parts Labor Warranty  

 Software Upgrade Costs 

 Software Update Costs 

 Software Assurance Support 

Table 6.1.5 

Component - Name Qty 

First Year 

Maintenance 

Costs 

Total Annual 

Second Year 

Maintenance 

Cost 

(List all component parts 

of the system) 

   

    

    

    

Total Maintenance Price    

 

 

6.1.5. Optional Equipment 

Table 6.1.6 

Facility Qty 
 

 Unit Price 

Install 

Price 
Total 

(List all component 

parts of the system)     

Call Accounting System 1    

Conference Bridge 1    

Click to Dial      

Twinning Licenses 15    

Wireless Head Set 1    

Wireless Hand Set 5    

Remote Agent Software 1    

 

6.2 Data Network Pricing – Expand the following tables in 6.3.2 and 6.3.3 as required 

to provide itemized, component pricing for the proposed system to meet the 

requirements of the proposed system for the City.  The component name should be 

clear and understandable, not a code or stock number.  The Discounted Price must 

be the actual cost the City will pay for the component, not a list price with a 

summary discount at the end.  Total Price equals the Quantity times the Discounted 

Price. 

 

6.3.1 WAN Equipment – Total Install should include the cost of configuring devices, 

validating connectivity and completing test plans. The vendor will be responsible for 

rack mounting and connecting cables for new switches and routers.   
 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 42 of 49 

6.3.2 LAN Equipment – Total Install should include the cost of configuring devices, 

validating connectivity, and completing test plans.  The selected vendor will be 

responsible for rack mounting and connecting cables for new switches and routers.  

 

Table 6.3.2 

Component – Name Qty  Unit Price 
Total 

Price 

Civic Center 
City Hall 
1 -  48 Port Layer 3 POE+ 
Switch with 2-4 optional but 
desired SFP Fiber Uplink 
Ports 
 
3 – 48 Port L2 or L3 PoE+ 
Switch 
 
Police 
1-  48 Port Layer 3 POE+ 
Switch with 2-4 optional but 
desired SFP Fiber Uplink 
Ports 
 
Senior Center 
1 – 24 Port L2 or L3 POE+ 
Switch with 2-4 optional but 
desired SFP Fiber Uplink 
Ports 
 
1 – UPS or specs to provide 
1+ hour of back up 
 

 

 
1 
 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 
 

1 

  

Library 
1 -  48 Port Layer 3 POE+ 
Switch with 2-4 optional but 
desired SFP Fiber Uplink 
Ports 
 
1 – 48 Port L2 or L3 PoE+ 
Switch 

 

1 
 
 
 
 

1 

  

Yard 
1 -  48 Port Layer 3 POE+ 
Switch with 2-4 optional but 
desired SFP Fiber Uplink 
Ports 
 

 
1 
 
 
 

 

  

Interconnect/stacking 

cables 

 

   

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 43 of 49 

(List all component parts 

of the system) 

   

Sub-total – Hardware / 

Software 

   

Shipping    

General Install & Training    

Taxes –     

Total Purchase Price    

 

6.3.3 Equipment Configuration – Equipment configuration includes all required 

configuration of VoIP related services for all sites.  
 

Table 6.3.3 

Component - Name Hours 
Configuration 

Price 

Total 

Configuration 

Initial configuration and 

design meeting 

2   

VLAN configuration and 

testing (all sites) 

   

WAN QoS configuration 

and testing 

   

    

(List all component parts 

of the system) 

   

Sub-total – Hardware / 

Software 

   

Shipping    

General Install & Training    

Taxes –     

Total Purchase Price    

 

6.3.4 Equipment Installation – Equipment installation includes mounting, basic 

configuration, testing and conversion to the replacement switches. NOTE: Patch 

cables to be supplied by the City. 
 

Table 6.3.4 

Component - Name Hours 
Configuration 

Price 

Total 

Configuration 

Configuration and testing    

Conversion from existing 

switches to new switches 

   

Post conversion support 

(minimum 4 hours) 

4   

(List all component parts 

of the system) 

   

Sub-total – Hardware / 

Software 

   

Shipping    

General Install & Training    

Taxes –     

Total Purchase Price    

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 44 of 49 

7. Delivery and Installation 

 

The City anticipates cutover of all locations to be completed in July 2016 or before.  

Please indicate whether this schedule can be met and identify the tasks, including site 

preparation that the City and the vendor will perform and/or be responsible for in order 

to accomplish delivery and installation of the system in this time frame.  It will be 

assumed that any task not specifically stated to be our responsibility would be that of 

the vendor.   

 

7.1. Implementation Plan - Within 5-days of contract award, the vendor must 

provide a tentative implementation plan with dates necessary to place the system 

into service.  This plan must clearly identify the tasks and resource requirements 

of the City during the implementation process. 

7.2. Risk of Loss - Please state when the customer assumes risk of loss or damage. 

7.3. System Physical Requirements - Please indicate the requirements for each 

location, for: 

7.3.1. Floor Spacing 

7.3.2. Floor Loading 

7.3.3. Wall Space 

7.3.4. Environmental factors such as air condition and ventilation 

7.3.5. Minimum size door opening required for equipment movement 

7.3.6. Specify the electrical and grounding requirements for the proposed system.  

Indicate what modifications will be needed, if any, at the site to meet those 

requirements.  Unless otherwise stated, the vendor will be responsible for any 

necessary modifications. 

7.4. Equipment Reduction - Explain any penalty or liability charge for reducing 

equipment or telephone instrument prior to and after installation of the proposed 

system. 

7.5. Equipment Delivery - The vendor will be responsible for making necessary 

arrangements with the management of the building for delivery of equipment to 

the premises.  The vendor must comply with all building regulations regarding 

hours, any delivery rigging and method and location of equipment delivery. 

7.6. Manuals and Brochures - Please provide hard copies and electronic versions 

the following as part of the proposal: 

7.6.1. Station user’s manual 

7.6.2. Voice mail user’s manual 

7.6.3. Any other pertinent reference information 

7.6.4. The City expects the selected vendor to produce a short version of the user 

guide to be provided to each system user.  This guide should be customized 

to provide steps to use the features specific to the City’s system design and 

selected feature group. 

7.7. Manufacturer Relationship - Please describe your precise relationship with the 

manufacturer of the proposed system (i.e., dealer, distributor, branch, common 

parent, etc.).  Proposers who do not hold primary full dealership status with the 

proposed manufacturer and who are dependent on secondary distributor 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 45 of 49 

arrangements to obtain product and direct access to manufacturer level 

engineers are not acceptable.   

7.8. Manufacturer’s Commitment - The vendor shall make a written commitment 

to make available maintenance spares, trained personnel, and software support 

to fully maintain the system for a period of ten years from the date of cutover.  

If the vendor is other than the manufacturer, then a letter of similar 

commitment from the manufacturer must be included in the proposal. 

7.9. Warranty - The Proposer must guarantee all of the installation work to be 

performed and materials to be furnished under this contract against defects in 

materials and workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year from the date 

of final acceptance of the completed work.  The Proposer shall, at their own 

expense and without cost to the City and within a reasonable time after receiving 

a written notice thereof, make good any defect in materials and/or workmanship 

of the installation which may develop during the guarantee period.  Any 

associated damage to other items and/or finished surfaces caused by the defect 

shall also be corrected by the Proposer to the satisfaction of the City and at no 

additional cost. 

7.10. Software Assurance – Maintenance and support quotes should include software 

assurance protection for the City.  Please itemize this cost. 

7.11. Software Updates – Please describe the following regarding available software 

upgrades: 

7.11.1. How is the City notified of new software upgrades and tools available for 

ALL the systems proposed? 

7.11.2. Does your company require software updates at these intervals or are 

they included/or optional? 

7.11.3. Are software updates included in the maintenance contract? 

7.11.4. In the case of VoIP solutions, do you provide recommended/required 

software updates for all network hardware in addition to the proposed 

system? 

7.11.5. Please provide typical frequency of software updates on an annual 

basis. 

7.12. Test Plan - The Proposer will develop and execute a test plan and final walk 

through with the owner’s project manager in attendance.  The test plan and walk 

through will include: 

7.12.1. Testing of all connectivity between switches. 

7.12.2. Random testing of port connectivity. 

7.12.3. Verification of each VLAN. 

7.12.4. Verification of Internet access. 

7.12.5. Printed copies of all equipment configurations for the City’s project 

manager review. 

7.12.6. Conducting a final walk through inspection of the installation with the 

City’s project manager and the preparation of a punch list of items that 

need attention prior to final acceptance. 

7.12.7. Completion of the punch list items and the request for a final acceptance 

walk through with the City’s project manager. 

7.12.8. Final acceptance of the installation. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 46 of 49 

5 DISCLOSURES & CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS 

Please note that any exceptions to the following requirements, as well as other sections, should be 
addressed in a separate section of the Vendor’s Proposal. 

Interpretations, Clarifications and Addenda 
9. INTERPRETATIONS, CLARIFICATIONS AND ADDENDA 

• No oral interpretations will be made to any vendor as to the meaning of the Proposal 

Documents. Any inquiry or request for interpretation received by the City by March 

30, 2016, will be given consideration.  

 

• The City reserves the right to amend this RFP prior to the proposal due date. Addenda 

or addendum will be published on the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com. In 

case any Proposer fails to acknowledge receipt of such addenda or addendum, his/her 

proposal will nevertheless be construed as though it had been received and 

acknowledged and the submission of his/her Proposal will constitute acknowledgment 

of the receipt of same. All addenda are a part of the Proposal Documents and each 

Proposer will be bound by such addenda, whether or not received by him/her. It is the 

responsibility of each Proposer to verify that he/she has received all addenda issued 

before Proposals are opened.  
 

 In the case of unit price items, the quantities of work to be done and materials to be 

furnished under this Proposal/Contract are to be considered as approximate only and 

are to be used solely for the comparison of Proposals received. The City and its 

Consultants do not expressly or by implication represent that the actual quantities 

involved will correspond exactly therewith; nor shall the Proposer plead 

misunderstanding or deception because of such estimate or quantities of work 

performed or material furnished in accordance with the Specifications and other 

proposal documents, and it is understood that the quantities may be increased or 

diminished as provided herein without in any way invalidating any of the unit or lump 

sum prices proposal. 

Rejection of Proposal 

Proposals that are not prepared in accordance with these instructions to vendors may be 

rejected or disqualified.  If not rejected, the City of Sierra Madre may require the correction of 

any deficiency and accept the corrected Proposal. 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 47 of 49 

Acceptance of Proposals 
 

The City of Sierra Madre reserves the right to accept the Proposal that is, in its 

judgment, the best and most favorable to the interests of the City, to reject the low 

price Proposal, to accept any item of any Proposal, to reject any and all Proposals, 

and to waive irregularities and informalities in any Proposal submitted or in the 

Request for Proposals process. 

 
Taxes 
 
The prices quoted herein shall agree with all California and Federal Tax Laws and regulations.  

Compliance with Applicable Laws 

 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and rules promulgated by 
any Federal, State, County, Municipal and/or other governmental unit or regulatory body now 
in effect or which may be in effect during the performance of the work.  Included within the 
scope of the laws, regulations, and rules referred to in this paragraph, but in no way to 
operate as a limitation, are all forms of traffic regulations, public utility and Interstate and 
Interstate Commerce Commission regulations, Workers’ Compensation Laws, Prevailing Wage 
Laws, the Social Security Act of the Federal government and any of it titles, the California 
Department of Human Rights, Human Rights Commission, or EEOC statutory provisions and 
rules and regulations. 

Indemnification 
Vendor will agree to defend, indemnify, and save harmless City of Sierra Madre, its Council, 

boards, commissions, officers, employees and agents, from and against any and all claims, 

suits, actions liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, without limitation, costs and 

fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or description, which may be brought against, or 

suffered or sustained by, City of Sierra Madre, its Council, boards, commissions, officers, 

employees or agents caused by, or alleged to have been caused by, the negligence, 

intentional tortuous act or omission, or willful misconduct of Vendor, its officers, employees or 

agents in the performance of any services or work pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

Insurance  
A Certificate of Insurance will be furnished by the successful Contractor upon Notice of 

Award. The certificate(s) shall be completed by the Contractor’s authorized agent and 

submitted to the City’s Risk Management Department. The successful Contractor shall 

not commence any work in connection with the Agreement until it has obtained all of 

the following types of insurance and shall maintain such insurance for the duration of 

the Agreement. The Contractor shall secure the minimum insurance coverage 

described below, and such insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or 

self-insurance programs maintained by the City. 
 

• Comprehensive Commercial General Liability. Contractor shall obtain, and 

maintain throughout the life of the Agreement, Comprehensive Commercial General 

Liability Insurance in an amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 

aggregate with an insurance carrier acceptable to the City and name the City as 

additional insured.  
 

• Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.   Contractor shall obtain, and 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 48 of 49 

maintain throughout the life of the Agreement, Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

Insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000, combined single limit for bodily injury 

liability and property damage liability and name the City as additional insured.  This 

coverage shall include all owned vehicles, hired and non-owned vehicles, and 

employee non-ownership vehicles.  
 

• Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  If applicable, the 

Contractor shall obtain, and maintain throughout the life of the Agreement, Workers’ 

Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance in the amount that meets the 

statutory requirement and shall be in force with an insurance carrier acceptable to the 

City.  Contractor and any sub-consultants or subcontractors shall comply fully with the 

California Workers’ Compensation Law. 

 
• Professional Liability Insurance.  If applicable, the Consultant shall obtain and 

maintain throughout the life of the Agreement Professional Liability Insurance in an 

amount of $1,000,000 per claims made and $2,000,000 aggregate with an insurance 

carrier accepted to the City. 

 

• The Contractor shall instruct their insurance broker to furnish properly 

executed certificates of insurance to the City. 

 

o The name of the insured Contractor, the specified job by name and/or RFP 

number, the name of the insurer, the number of the policy, its effective date 

and its termination date.  

o Certificates of insurance shall clearly evidence coverage required above. 
 

The city reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements set forth at any 

time during the process of solicitation or subsequent thereto. 

Reduction in Coverage/Material Changes.  Vendor will notify the City in writing pursuant 

to the notice provisions of the final contract thirty (30) days prior to any reduction in any of 

the insurance coverage required pursuant to this RFP or any material changes to the 

respective insurance policies. 

Waiver of Subrogation.  The policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation for the benefit of 

the City. 

Termination for Default 
 
In the event of a breach of any of the terms of this Agreement including the Contractor’s 
warranties, the City may, at its option and without prejudice to any of its other rights, cancel 
any undelivered work or material. 

Intention 

The vendor shall, unless otherwise specified, supply all installation, conversion, training, 

transportation, and incidentals necessary for the entire proper implementation of the selected 

systems.  In addition, the vendor shall be responsible for the implementation in a most 

professional manner of all items as shown in the Proposal, stated in the specifications, or 

reasonably implied, in accordance with the contract documents. 

ATTACHMENT



Telecommunications System RFP  City of Sierra Madre 

 

The City of Sierra Madre  Page 49 of 49 

Rights to Submitted Materials 

All proposals, inquiries, or correspondence relating to or in reference to this RFP, and all 

reports, charts, displays and other documentation submitted by the vendor shall become the 

property of the City of Sierra Madre when received.  The City reserves the right to use the 

material or any ideas submitted in the RFP. 

Vendor Demonstrations 

Select vendors will be requested, at no cost to the City of Sierra Madre, to demonstrate the 

proposed software and hardware systems at a mutually agreeable date and site.  
 

ATTACHMENT



Agenda 
Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, 

Successor Agency and Public Finance Authority 
Tuesday, March 8, 2016 – 6:30 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, opened the Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, Successor Agency and Public 
Finance Authority at 6:30 p.m.  City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, read the roll, noting that all City Council 
members were present. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Present: John Capoccia, Mayor, Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem, Council Members, Rachelle 

Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and John Harabedian. 
Absent:  None 

Also Present:  Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
   Holly O. Whatley, Assistant City Attorney 
   Vincent Gonzalez,  Director of Planning and Community Preservation 
   Larry Giannone,  Safety Director and Police Chief 
   Marcie Medina, Finance Director 
   Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief 
   Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager 
   James Carlson, Management Analyst 
   Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works 
   Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, led the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a prayer  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar for approval 
of the Agenda as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 23, 2016 
 

Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss for approval of the 
Minutes of February 23, 2016 as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 

1) Council Member, John Harabedian, announced that he and Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, 
attended the new gold Line Station in Duarte.  It runs to Azusa.  It was a great event.  Folks have options 
on the Gold Line. 

 
2) Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, announced that he was honored to MC the City of the Mayor address. 

 
3) Council Member, Denise Delmar attended the Library Board of Trustee’s Meeting and the Employee 

Recognition Dinner.  It was a lot of fun. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 2 o 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 

4) Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, did not have a report. 
 

5) Mayor, John Capoccia, announced the Wistaria Festival this Sunday.  The vine is beautiful. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Barry Ziff, Member, Library Board of Trustees 
 
 Mr. Ziff announced the activities going on at the Library: 

 National Library Week – April 10-16.  Local authors will be present. 

 Teen Docents for Story Board. 

 Friend’s is having a Book Sale.  Historical Society will be present. 

 Friends of the Library will be giving free CD rentals. 

 There will be light refreshments.  

 Read Program – Tots to Adults. 
Mr. Ziff read notes from a  family in Sierra Madre on their enjoyment of the Library. 

 Thank you. 
 
Mary Carney, on behalf of the the Sierra Madre Woman’s Club 
 

Ms. Carney wanted to announce that there would be an Election Night Mixer on this coming Thursday.  
Mayor Capoccia, Council Member Harabedian, Barry Gold, Michael Amerio and Melinda Carrillo would be 
present and would be speaking.  Everyone is welcome.  It is from 5:30-7:30.  There will be light 
refreshments.  Please come. 

 
Barry Gold, Ramona Avenue 
 

Mr. Gold announced that he is the write-in candidate at the upcoming election on April 12, 2016.  The 
residents are concerned about the level of service that the Sheriff’s Department will be giving – At 11:00 
p.m. last night, a resident heard what she thought was men -0 she called 911.  Within a couple of minutes 
she told me a couple of Sheriffs were there.  More follows.  The next morning Forensic personnel and the 
Sheriff’s Department came.  She wasn’t hurt.  The Sheriffs were as respectful as could possibly be.  The 
residents with misgivings – the Sheriff’s Department will be great to protect us.  Thank you. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public comment. 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Recognition Of employees with 10 or more years of employment service with the City of Sierra Madre. 
 
 10 Years:  Elisa Cox, Administration 
    Rolando Gutierrez, Public Works 
 
 35 Years  Daniel Rodriguez, Public Works 
 
Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the background of service of Elisa Cox.  Rolando Gutierrez was not present.   
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 3 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, gave the background of Daniel Rodriguez, who is the mechanic for 
everything that needs fixed in the City. 
 
Roland Gutierrez will be presented at a future City Council Meeting. 
Mayor, John Capoccia, presented a Certificate of Recognition to each. 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the following report under the Consent Calendar: 

 
 1a). WARRANTS 
 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 16-15 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS” and approval for payment of City 
Warrants in the aggregate amount of $276,718.44; Si9erra Madre Library Warrants in aggregate 
amount of $1,777.16; and Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $308,739.56 for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2016. 

 
 1b). QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT – SECOND QUARTER OF FY 2015-16 
 

The Quarterly Financial Report for second quarter of the 2015-16 fiscal year was attached to the 
Agenda.  The Quarterly Financial Report summarizes the City’s overall financial position for the 
period of July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015.  General Fund Revenues and Expenditures at 
this time are on target with budget projections. 
 
Staff recommends receive and file the Quarterly Financial Report for the quarter ending 
December 31, 2015. 

 
1c). RECOMMENDATION TO REJECT ALL BIDS FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF WATER MAINS IN SIERRA 

PLACE AND IN MANZANITA AVENUE 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council reject all bids received February 22, 2016 for the 
replacement of water mains in Sierra Place and in Manzanita Avenue. 

 
On October 19

th
, the City Council approved two phases of water main replacement projects for 

FY 2015-16.  Subsequently, the first phase was bifurcated into two sub-phases and the first sub-
phase was awarded on an emergency basis, to replace the mains in Skyland Drive and Idle Hour 
Lane.  The remainder of Phase 1 consists of Sierra Place from Sierra Madre Boulevard to Lowell 
Avenue and a portion of Manzanita Avenue, between South Lima Street and South Hermosa 
Avenue. 
 
One reason why the leaking mains in Manzanita and Sierra Place were elevated to Phase1 is 
because design drawings were already done for main replacements in these street sections as 
part of uncompleted prior years’ projects.  Proceeding with these streets allows the City to get a 
quicker start on priority main replacements than if we had to wait on the design of new plans.  
The design for Phase 2 can begin while advertisements and construction of Phase 1 is underway. 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 4 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
1d). DECLARATION OF CITY OWNED VEHICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUSED. 

 
City policy requires that prior to unused City property being disposed of, the property be 
declared surplus by the City Council. 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council declare the vehicles and equipment listed in this report 
to be surplus and approve of the disposal of the items as described herein. 
 
Declaration of Surplus Property: 
Dodge Charger 
GMC Sonoma 
Piano 
Piano 
Two Air Hockey Tables 
Two Pool Tables 
Old Shelving and Partitions (not reusable) 
 
Staff recommends that the vehicles and miscellaneous property listed above be declared surplus 
by the City Council and authorize City staff to work with an auction house to have the surplus 
vehicle and equipment auctioned off. 

 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input.   
 
Barry Gold, Ramona Avenue 
 

Mr. Gold noted that the staff report makes it clear that funds are not available for repairs.  Raise taxes, 
cut expenses, or both.  We can lower by contracting with the Sheriff Department.  Savings can help with 
water mains.  Consider the SAheriff Department – it will be perfect for us. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public input. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar, for approval 
of the Consent Calendar as presented by staff.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 

2). SIERRA MADRE FIRE DEPARTMENT 2015 ANNUAL REPORT 
 

Stephen F. Heydorff, Fire Chief, gave a thorough report which is available at City Hall for anyone 
wishing to read the complete report.  A recap follows: 
 
The Fire Department provides three essential services: 
 

 Fire Suppression 

 Fire Prevention and Investigation. 

 Emergency Medical Services 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 5 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
Our volunteer personnel worked a total of 28,873 hours in 2015.  This is down about 6,000 hours 
from 2014.  This can be contributed directly to the loss of our volunteer engineers and Battalion 
Chiefs.  The United States Department of Labor states that a volunteer is worth $23.05 per hour.  
Therefore, our volunteers volunteered about $665,522 last year.  Full and part-time paid fire 
personnel worked a total of 14,384 hours.  The Paramedics worked 17,520 hours.  The total 
hours it took to run our Fire Department is over 61,000 hours per year. 
 
We had 970 calls for service last year, which is the most calls we have had in the last ten years.  
We were close to 2012 when we had 968.  However, that was the year we had the December 
windstorm, 70 calls in 24 hours.  This is a 14% increase since 2013 (same as L. A. City) Chief 
Terrazas.   
 
RA 41 response time was down from 4:44 56to 4:05.  I credit this with the elimination of the RA 
going on Chantry calls and the increase calls at the Kensington.  Engine 41 stayed close to the 
same time (12 seconds), but it still responds up Chantry with L. A. County Fire Department.  The 
engine always responds with the RA.  We and along with other Fire Departments are questioned 
why we need to run the Engine with the RA.  It’s because we need the manpower on the call 
(two medics, one captain, one engineer and one or two FF). 
 
Fire loss was down to $22,075 this year from $145,017 in 2014.  We had two structure fires in 
2014 (don’t look at one year, you need to look at a five year trend).  We had one firefighter 
injured and one fatality this year.  Training hours we totaled 6,286 hours and that is an average 
of over 120 hours per person.  We had 1,620 inspections in 2015, which mostly came from brush 
inspections. 
 
We had 25 fire responses 699 EMS over pressure was a transformer.  This is the ninth 
consecutive year we have responded to more than 800 calls and this year was the mkost calls we 
have ever had. 
 
Re.:  EMS 
We responded to 699 medical calls and we had an EMS revenue of $239,394.50.  Our program 
was reviewed by L. A. County Department of Health Services and passed the review with no 
follow-ups. 
 
Re.: New Ambulance 
2015 Frazer Type One Ambulance – Dodge 4500 Chassis.  Ground clearance is higher.  The 
generator to run module and air conditioning – it is gas powered and not diesel. 
 
Re.:  Training 
Members completed over 6,000 hours of training - averaged over 120 per firefighter.  We 
participated in multiple live burn scenarios.  Through the LAAFCA and the RTG the area has 
received grant funding to build and maintain nine training centers – Monrovia is the closes one. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 6 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 

Re.:  Fire Prevention 
We completed a total of 1,924 inspections.  Brush inspections of course were the majority of the 
inspections.  We did 94 apartment inspections.  We had 66 commercials up from 25 the year 
before.  We handled eight complaints and had 217 follow-up inspections.  The Fire Marshal did 
87 sprinkler inspections.  Through the Fire Prevention Bureau, we issued 17 fire permits.  We had 
26 public education tours – both at the station and at the local schools.  We had 203 plan checks.  
We had a successful fire prevention festival in October.  There were over 250 in attendance, and 
we served over 175 hotdogs and 200 sodas. 
 
Re:  Comparison of Yearly Responses 
We have had a 14% increase since 2013.  Same as L. A. City Fire/Chief Terrazas said at an LAAFCA 
meeting.  We are trending to do over 1,000 calls this year. 
 
Re.:  Ten Year Trend 
As you can see, fires and service calls stay flat.  We, along with all other Fire Departments have 
seen a rise in EMS calls – aging population Baby Boomers. 
 
Re.:  Budget Comparison 
Sierra Madre continues to be the most economical service plan to deliver Paramedic and Fire 
service; both per call and per resident. 
 
Arcadia is about $192.72 per person, and $2,960 per call. 
Monrovia is $258.54/person and $2,773.29. 
South Pasadena is $174.48/person and $2,571 per call. 
La Habra Heights is $236/person and $2,849/call. 
San Marino is $455/person and $6,168/call. 
Sierra Madre is $173.82/person and $2,000.74/call. 
 
San Marino and La Habra Heights are majority funded by Special Revenue Property Taxes. 
 
Re.:  Response Time Comparisons 
Sierra Madre Fire Department’s response timem is comparable to all of our neighbors. 
 
Re.:  Accomplishments 

 CERT training in the City Yards. 

 Purchased and put into service a new Rescue Ambulance. 

 Fire Prevention Festival in October 

 Contracted with Arcadia and Monrovia for Battalion Chief Coverage 

 Contracted Auto Aid with L. A. County Fire Department for first alarm incidents in Sierra 
Madre (Engine 41 goes up Chantry, but the RA now stays in town). 

 We had ten firefighters hired by career departments. 

 Renewed over 450 members in the Paramedic’s Subscription program. 

 Phos-Chek was completed around Santa Anita Rd., the Rose Bowl and La Verne. 

 Purchased a Container in order to keep all turnouts at the station. 
Thank you for your time.  Do you have any questions or concerns? 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 7 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 SIERRA MADRE POLICE DEPARTMENT ANNUAL REPORT 
 

Larry Giannone, Pubic Safety Officer and Police Chief, also gave a thorough report which is 
available at City Hall for anyone wishing to read the complete report.  A recap follows: 
 
As a professional law enforcement organization, the Sierra Madre Police Department takes great 
pride in delivering the highest level of public safety and service.  Employees make hundreds of 
contacts a month with members of our community in situations that are often challenging.  Even 
in difficult situations the culture of our department is to treat people fairly, with respect and to 
provide a high level of service.  Below are a few tools we use to help accomplish this. 
 
Annual Evaluations:  Each year, every full time employee receives a comprehensive annual 
evaluation with specific goals tailored to each employee. 
 
Video and Audio Recorders:  Every patrol car is equipped with a video camera.  Thee video/audio 
file from the patrol cars are automatically downloaded onto a server.  Employees also carry 
digital audio recorders which they use for all field contacts.  Supervisors randomly conduct an 
audit of the video and audio files. 
 
Monthly Training:  For several years the Sierra Madre Police Department has utilized Lexipol, 
which is a provider of policy management resources for law enforcement organizations across 
the country.  Lexipol is an on-line tool that provides comprehensive defensible policies written by 
legal and public safety professionals. 
 
Use of Force and Pursui9ts:  When a Use of Force or pursuit occurs, a field supervisor completes 
a preliminary investigative report.  The Watch Commander, Captain and Chief review every Use 
of Force anhd pursuit report to ensure there is compliance within departmental policy. 
 
Personnel Complaints:  The Sierra Madre Police Department takes all complaints regarding the 
service provided by the Department and the conduct of its members seriously.  The Department 
accepts and addresses all complaints of misconduct in accordance with this policy and applicable 
federal, state and local law, municipal and country rules and the requirements of any collective 
bargaining agreements. 
 
Employee Awards:  On April 14, 2015, Chief Giannone and Officer Hare were commemorated 
with the Deuce Award for their DUI arrests in the year os 2014 during the Mothers Against Drunk 
Driving banquet.  ON October 8, 2015, Captain Ortiz was commemorated with the Public Safety 
award for his strong work ethic and efforts to maintain a safe community at the Sierra Madre 
Honor Awards Ceremony. 
 
Statistics: Budget:  Police Department – The City of Sierra Madre General Fund allocation 
(FY 2014-2015 – unaudited) is as follows: 
Police Personnel (includes benefits) - $3,374,831.00. 
Maintenance and Operations: $710,679.00 
Other Grants, Donations and Revenue - $103,700.00 
Total:  $4,189.210.00. 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 8 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 

 Full Time Officers:  10 

 Full Time Professional Staff (Dispatchers):  4 

 Part-Time Staff:  14 

 Volunteers:  18 

 Volunteer Hours Donated:  1,669 
 
Dispatch: 
 

 Total Calls Into Dispatch;  13, 335 

 Total Calls for Service:  5,137 

 911 Calls:  1,890 

  
Detective Bureau: 
 

 Search Warrants:  10 

 Cases Assigned:  286 
 

Crime Stats: 
 

 Total Arrests:  327 

 Total Police  Reports Taken:  412 
 

Emergency Response Time: 
 

 Priority Calls:  3:53 minutes 

 Non-priority Calls:  4.04 minutes 
 

Traffic Data: 
 

 Parking Violations:  2,764 

 Traffic Citations Issued:  551 

 Written Warnings Issued:  124 
 

Crime/Collisions Comparison to 2014 
 

 Our property crimes had an increase of 18.49% from 2014. 

 Our violent crimes had an increase of 16.66% from 2014. 

 Non-injury traffic collisions had a decrease of 30.95% from 2014 

 Injury traffic collisions had a decrease of 7.14% from 2014. 
 

Patrol Officers and Dispatchers, and SMPD Response Times: 
 

 There is a direct correlation between the staffing levels and the response times. 

 Historically we have found that when dispatchers are in training the times may be off, 
sometimes up to a minute, because of the training process. 

 
Dispatch:  Police Chief Giannone reviewed Upgrade #1, Upgrade #2 and Upgrade #3 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 9 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
Jail: 
The Sierra Madre jail is identified by the California Board of Corrections as a “Temporary Holding 
Facility.”  This classification means that inmates can be held for 24 hours or less, pending their 
release, transfer to another facility (Pasadena Jail, Los Angeles County Jail, or a medical facility), 
or appear in court.  Minors cannot be detained for longer than six hours.  The police of the Sierra 
Madre Police Department is to hold all inmates for six hours or less.  Whenever there is an 
inmate(s) in the jail, there will be at least one trained employee on duty in the facility.  The 
employee will be immediately available and accessible to the inmate(s) in the event of an 
emergency. 
 
The jail facility consists of a jail cell, a pre-booking cell, a live scan machine, and a pre-booking 
room.  The jail cell has four beds and a toilet/sink combination.  The jail cell has a capacity of four 
inmates.  The pre-booking cell is where the inmate is placed while the police officer gathers all 
the information needed for booking.  The pre-booking room has all the necessary forms needed 
for booking and also houses the breathalyzer.  The breathalyzer is a device used to determine 
blood alcohol content from a breath sample.  The live scan machine is used for the booking of 
inmates and for genera live scan services for the public. 

 
Volunteers: 
 
\The Sierra Madre Police Department Civilian Volunteers are an integral part of the Police 
Department’s work force.  They provide an invaluable source of experience, energy and time to 
make their community a safer place to live.  The volunteers augment the department by 
conducting special assignments an details so that police officers can increase their availability in 
the field.  The volunteers perform a wide range of non-enforcement duties and provide many 
services for the department and the community such as:  assisting with traffic control, radar 
surveys and performing vacation checks.  They are an extra set of “eyes and ears” for the 
department. 
 
The department has approximately 18 volunteers and in 2015, the volunteers served a total of 
1,669 hours of service to the department and community.  This is equivalent to $44,846.00 of 
“dollar value” provided to the City of Sierra Madre. 
 
The dollar value is based on the Independent Sector Organizations estimated hourly dollar value 
for volunteer time in California, which is $26.87/hour.  This estimate helps acknowledge the 
millions of individuals nationwide who dedicate their time, talents, and energy to make a 
difference in their communities. 
 
Thank you Sierra Madre Police Volunteers!  Police Chief Giannone also thanked the staff for all 
they do. 
 
Social Media: 
 
At the beginning of 2015, Sierra Madre Police Department expanded into the world of social 
media.  The department had originally planned to utilize social media to stay informed, however 
it quickly turned into a great opportunity to connect with the community and other departments.  
Throughout the year, Sierra Madre has successfully built a strong foundation within the social 
media world by utilizing various applications such as Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 10 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 
Nixle.  Through such applications, the department is now able to relay up to date information to 
thousands of people in cases such as:  warning of trail closures, active investigations in a certain 
area, crime alerts and trends, or simply to inform followers of an upcoming community event.  In 
return, we have witnessed the positive effects of choosing to be active in social media.  Our 
residents have responded with encouraging feedback and appreciation.  As our efforts continue, 
our goal is to establish a growing audience of online followers which will serve as another tool in 
investigations locating suspects or a crucial tip to help lead to arrests. 
 
Public Safety Committee: 
In 2015, the City of Sierra Madre formed a committee to act as an advisory panel for all aspects 
of Public Safety within the community.  This includes Law Enforcement Code Enforcement, Fire 
Safety, Humane Services, and any other area where the public’s safety can be addressed. Serving 
on the Committee allows community members and residents to be a voice for public safety.  The 
current Public Safety Committee Members are: Rosemary Burnett, Bill Coburn, Donald Handley, 
Glen Lambdin and Joseph Widman.  The Committee meets the 2

nd
 Thursday of the month at 6:00 

p.m. in the City Hall Conference Room.  Council Liaison is Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem.  Council 
Alternate:  Rachelle Arizmendi, City Council Member and Staff Liaison is Larry Giannone, Public 
Safety Director. 

 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, thanked Fire Chief Heydorff and Public Safety Director/Police Chief for their 
Annual Reports. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, also thanked the Fire Chief and Public Safety Director/Police Chief for their 
service and volunteers. 
 
Larry Giannone, reported on the recent break-in.  The individuals are striking several towns.  They are being 
investigated.  The Sheriff Department will be putting an additional car in town.  It is a group doing burglaries.  I am 
confident they will be taken into custody.  I encourage everyone – if you see anything suspicious, call 911.  Crooks 
don’t know borders.  We have been fortunate that we haven’t had a rash of crimes in daytime burglaries.  It is 
happening.  It is team work.  They drive a silver range rover primarily – you need to know your neighborhood.  
Usually thre3e people are in the car, driver and two people run.  Please call us. 
 
Mayor Capoccia also thanked Police Giannone for the Department’s hard work and working with the Sheriff 
Department.  The job is difficult. 
 
Police Chief Giannone thanked the staff and all for putting this report together. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input and there was none. 
 
Mayor Capoccia remarked that this agenda item is a “receive and file”. 
 
 
 3). DISCUSSION REGARDING LONG-TERM FINANCIAL STABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

The City Council’s current Strategic Plan has a Goal of, “Achieve Financial Stability and 
Sustainability.”  Under the goal, two of the objectives are: 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 11 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 

 March 2016 – Present to the City Council for action the charge of the Long-Term Financial 
Stability and Sustainability Committee. 

 April 2016 – Create a Long-Term Financial Stability Committee for operations and 
infrastructure composed of two City Council Members, staff and Members of the Public to 
prepare a Long-Term Financial Stability Plan for presentation to the Council. 

 
The purpose of this report is to have a discussion and decide upon a “charge” for the Committee 
and should the Council decide to proceed, to decide upon a selection process for the public 
members of the Committee. 

 
Sierra Madre is a 100+ year old city.  There have been many challenges over the years, and many 
of these challenges were resolved because of the active engagement of the community and the 
involvement of many parties – elected officials, the public and city staff.  Financial challenges are 
not new.  Between 2010 and 2015, the City Council made difficult decisions in order to maintain 
balanced budgets.  The past couple of years’ budgets have reflected budget adjustments, staff 
realignments and downsizing, contracting and service level reductions.  Budgets and audits are a 
“snapshot” of city finances for a one-year period of time.  But annual budgets and audits do not 
lay out a plan for the long-term future. 
 
The City Council spent much of the last two years in budget related discussions.  It was evident 
that looking at city finances for a time period of more than one or two years would be beneficial.  
For example, it has been noted a number of times that the current staffing model for the Fire 
Department is not sustainable and costs have been and will continue to increase.  It was also 
evident that an adequate investment (maintenance and replacement) was not being made to 
public facilities, streets, water infrastructure, and sidewalks, etc. because of a lack of available 
resources. 
 
A long-term Financial Plan involves financial forecasting (projecting revenues and expenditures 
over a long-term period, evaluating various assumptions) and an examination and discussion of 
long-term service levels, not only operational service levels, but also capital and infrastructure 
needs. 
 
The purpose of this staff report is to determine: 
 
1. Does the Council want to embark on the development of a Long-Term Financial Plan? 
2. How would the Plan be developed?  With a Committee?  What is the Committee’s 

charge/responsibility? 
3. How should the Committee be formed? 
 
The City Manager reviewed what the Committee’s Charge would be, process for appointing 
committee members, how the public members can be selected, etc. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 12 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 

Once a process of selecting members is agreed upon, either staff will schedule the appointments 
to occur at a May 2016 Council meeting (if alternative 2 is selected), or staff will begin the 
recruitment process by publicizing the committee appointments and soliciting applications..  
Once an adequate number of applications is received the appointments can be scheduled for a 
future Council meeting. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
1. The City Council may take no action, and not form a Long-Term Financial Stability 

Committee. 
2. The City Council could request additional information, or request that this report be placed 

on a future agenda. 
3. The City Council could take action to decide upon a method to select Committee members, 

and decide upon the charge and responsibility of a Long-Term Financial Stability Committee. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council proceed with the formation of the Committee, based 
upon previous direction in the Strategic Plan. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council decide upon a method to select Committee members, 
and decide upon the charge and responsibility of a Long-Term Financial Stability Committee. 

 
Mayor Capoccia remarked that this is a very comprehensive report.  Is a year realistic.  For example, the Fire 
Department analysis.  The future of the Fire Department would take months.  Police Department is the same. 
 
The City Manager noted that it depends.  If the project is broad – two years.  For one year we would present the 
General Plan and what it envisions.  It could guide projections. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input. 
 
Emmett Mcguire 
 

Mr. Mcguire stated that he feels this is a great idea.  All governmental agencies need future planning.  This 
effort fills the gap.  See what is needed and go for it.  I urge you to do some form of this. 

 
De Alcorn, E. Grand View Avenue 
 

Mr. Alcorn feels this is long overdue.  Maybe if we would have had that it could have avoided what we are 
going through today.  Look long-term ahead.  You need something like this. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed community input. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, stated that this is a great idea and we should be doing.  Looking down the road 
and how to pay for is the issue.  Is a committee the right tool for this.  We work with staff for the best path of the 
City.  It is important to have public input, and public forums.  This puts a burden on staff.  This type of committee 
would bog down staff.  I would have staff come up with this and bring to the City Council. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 13 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, stated that she totally agrees with Council Member Harabedian.  Committees are 
good, but at this juncture, we need long-term planning.  Tools are available.  We had public input, we have a 
revenue committee, there is outreach from League of Cities.  They have “help tools”.  Let’s utilize that.  They offer 
help.  I would like the City Manager to do and present to the City Council, and maybe get public involved later.  
When you bring people into this with no experience, people have to learn and we don’t have time. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that it is something we should do, there is value to a committee, but 
not tackle all this.  Concern is around staff time demands for commission meetings.  This is more intensive.  I don’t 
want to lose what the revenue committee did.  Disect more, uti8lize committee and come back.  Underscore value 
for committee to participate.  Revisit Revenue Committee and utilize and work off of them. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he feels this is really a good idea.  The Revenue Committee addressed 
several items.  I like all I’ve heard.  Get the staff to focus and narrow down the options. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, stated that the financial tool of League can help and forecast.  Bring back in 
months and use Revenue.  There are a bunch of spread sheets.  Tools have been in place years ago.  Rancho 
Cucamonga learned where to put revenue and deficit, then went to community.  It gives broad knowledge. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked if the League could talk to us? 
 
The City Manager stated that staff is familiar with this.  Maybe three months to put data in and then just update. 
 
Mayor Capoccia noted that he feels our City is in a good condition.  It would give objective measures.  It is a good 
place to start.  My instinct is rather clear idea and direction.  Let’s start with that. 
 
Council Member Arizmendi feels it is a good place to start, then use Revenue Committee recommendations.  Don’t 
wait three months. 
 
The City Manager will recommend bringing back Revenue Committee.  It will be a financial tool to provide 
technical data on why we need additional revenue.  Refreshing our memories is good.  We will present financial 
review. 
 
 4). STRATEGIC PLAN FROM OCTOBER 20, 2015 RETREAT 
 

Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave an update on the Strategic Plan from October 20, 2015 Retreat 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, remarked that the Strategic Plan has been scheduled for once a year now.  We 
will do in the fall. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input and there was none. 
 
The City Manager announced that we have one more meeting in March. There is one meeting in April which will be 
the reorganization on April 26

th
.  The election is April 12

th
 and final recount on April 19

th
.  

 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 14 of 14 
March 8, 2016 

 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian for approval of 
adjournment at 8:32 p.m.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       John Capoccia, Mayor 
Minutes taken and typed by: 
 
 
 
Nancy Sue Shollenberger 
City Clerk 


























































































































































	City Council Meeting Agenda 3-22-2016
	1c - RFP for New Telecommunications Systems - RFP attached
	1c - RFP for New Telecommunications System
	1c - RFP attachment

	Unapproved City Council meeting minutes 3-8-2016
	1a - Approving Certain Demands
	1b - FY 2016-2017 Investment Policy
	2 - Update of the MS4 Permit
	3 - Water Conversation Update



